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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
31 31 31 31 31
10,046 10,717 11,640 12,029 11,799
1,101,544 1,175,119 1,276,326 1,318,980 1,293,760
1,439 1,825 1,984 2,375 3,565
157,786 200,111 217,546 260,419 390,902
267 3,410 795 913 2,017
29,277 373,907 87,172 100,110 221,164
915 915 915 915 915
100,330 100,330 100,330 100,330 100,330
91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500
9,524 12,880 13,578 14,503 15,595
1,044,307 1,412,292 1,488,828 1,590,254 1,709,992
119,635 120,546 116,516 125,555 133,728
13,117,978 13,217,869 12,775,979 13,767,106 14,663,275
104.09 140.77 148.39 158.50 170.44
11,413 15,435 16,271 17,380 18,689
2.92 37.27 8.69 9.98 22.04
320 4,087 953 1,094 2,417
8.0 10.7 11.7 11.6 11.7
2.8 30.4 6.0 6.5 13.4
5,914 8,335 5,935 5,764 6,243
648,470 913,933 650,773 632,023 684,545
(9,676) (7,484) (3,016) (8,757) (11,491)
(1,060,973) (820,621) (330,704) (960,205) (1,259,988)
5,336 1,377) (4,495) 8,339 6,871
585,092 (150,988) (492,877) 914,371 753,405
4,198 3,540 2,198 6,790 8,195
460,311 388,161 241,011 744,524 898,582
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2019 2020 2021

$593 $684 $1,606

202 229 411

$795 $913 $2,017

14
2020 2021
2020 913 2021
2,017 2020 2021
888 532
164 88
86 74
521 230
2021 TFSIC 700
1.1 2020 31 14.5 2021
31 15.6 292
ASU 2016-13 218
2020 31 97.7

2021 31 109.7 2020

31 6.7 2021 31 7.0
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87
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31
2019 2020
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2020 2021
$8,694 $8,775 $8,481 1% G3)%
2,235 2,558 2,905 14% 14%
711 696 413 @)% 41)%
11,640 12,029 11,799 3 @)%
6,909 6,820 5,932 W% (13)%
2,769 2,854 2,302 3 (19)%
1,962 2,355 3,565 20% 51%
188 155 93 (18)% (40)%
2,150 2,510 3,658 17% 46%
372 590 426 59% (28)%
1,038 1,197 1,124 15% (6)%
1,410 1,787 1,550 27% (13)%
740 723 2,108 @k 192%
147 39 502 (73)% 1,187%
$593 $684 $1,606 15% 135%
ASU 2016-13
2020 684 2021 1,606
2020 2021
888 552
164 73
463 230

62
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$2,559 $2,488 $1,954
(53) 180 420
2,506 2,668 2,374
(1,078) (703) 1,402
1,015 650 (1,351)
304 219 (123)
$2,747 $2,834 $2,302

2020 2,834 2021 2,302
2021 2020 2,668

2,374
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2019 2020
2019 2020 2021
2020 2021
« D
567 630 748 11% 19%
263 337 482 28% 43%
498 470 498 (6)% 6%
1,328 1,437 1,728 8% 20%
TMNA « )
316 201 300 (36)% 49%
35 48 61 37 27%
471 426 364 (10)% (15)%
822 675 725 (18)% %
TMNA « ) 59.8% 63.4% 61.8%
2019 80 17
2020 79 17
2021 66
15 13
THINA

TMNA
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$53,016 $56,364 $65,653 6% 16%
17,501 17,632 13,539 1% 3)%
70,517 73,996 79,192 5% %
37,927 36,387 37,001 @) 2%
$108,444  $110,383  $116,283 2% 5%
37 36 37
67 69 68
966 953 1,002 @ 5%
362 371 395 2% 6%
1,328 1,324 1,397 % 6%
309 294 185 )% @G7)%
ASU  2016-13

24

24

60
85
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31
2019 2020
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578 562 511 G3)% (9%
114 119 110 4% @)%
57 60 31 5% (48)%
137 137 74 % (46)%
308 316 215 3% (2%
2021 2020
2021 2020
32 2021
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) $6,909 $6,820 $5,932 @)% (13)%
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2021 5,932
COVID-19
COVID-19
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31
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2,475 2,593 2,604 5% %
8,886 9,301 9,525 5% 2%
)

$904 $933 $956 3% 2%

126 187 317 48% 70%

1,030 1,120 1,273 9% 14%

446 455 369 2% 19)%

347 364 363 5% %

793 819 732 3% (11)%

237 301 541 27% 80%

35 72 130 106% 81%

$202 $229 $411 13% 79%

2020 229 2021
411 2020 2021
130
86 58
2020 2021
2020 2021
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2020 31 2021 31
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$1,437 $1,356

(966) (840)

(420) (462)

$51 $54

$3,116 $1,385

(966) (840)

(2,105) (544)

$45 $1
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12
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93% 95%
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FICO 750 754 744
C ) 67 69 68
2019 31 2020 31
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31
2019 2020 2021
0.39% 0.44% 0.29%
C ) 1.17% 1.09% 0.90%
) $9,301 $9,555 $10,035
( )
0.34% 0.41% 0.27%
0.27% 0.34% 0.20%
ASU 2016-13
ASU 2016-13
2021 31 0.29
2020 1.09 2021 0.90
2021
9,555 10,035
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oOoOooodn
60 2020 0.41
2021 0.27 60
2020 31 0.34 2021 31 0.20
COVID-19
2020
COvID-19
2020 ASU  2016-13
FICO

FICO
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31
2019 2020 2021
$463 $499 $727
ASU  2016-13 - - 292
(330) (370) (287)
50 50 57
316 548 426
$499 $727 $1,215
2020
2021 31
37
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oOoOooodn
31
2019 2020 2021
0.70% 0.97% 1.47%
2021 31
37
ASU 2016-13
2020
2020 31 727 2021 31
1,215 2020 0.97 2021
1.47 ASU 2016-13 292
CovID-19 CovID-19
196
2021

ASU 2016-13
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2021 9.2 25.4
15.2
™S 5.0
2021 31
TFS
TFS
TFS TMCC TFS

12
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TFS
TMCC
2020 31 2021 31

$27,040 $26,968 1.85% $17,027 $17,021 0.20%
( MTN 33,658 33,527 2.44% 44,294 44,149 1.64%

)
( EMTN 17,074 16,974 1.69% 16,262 16,173 1.57%

)
5,705 5,703 2.06% 8,176 8,170 1.33%
83,477 83,172 2.07% 85,759 85,513 1.31%
14,597 14,568 2.13% 24,256 24,212 1.29%
$98,074 $97,740 2.08% $110,015 $109,725 1.31%
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MTN EMTN
)
2020 31 $27,040 $33,658 $17,074 $5,705 $83,477
- 22,276 1,752 5,522 29,550
(10,013) (11,640)  (3,966) (3,110) (28,729)
_ - 1,402 59 1,461
2021 31 $17,027 $44,294 $16,262 $8,176 $85,759
2021 30 $4,595 $2.500 ¢ $555 $7.650
2021
16.8 28.4 22.1
WV
SEC SEC
2024
T™CC
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EMTN

EMTN
EMTN

T™MCC

EMTN

2021

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TMCC
EMTN
EMTN 2020 EMTN
50.0
30 17.5
EMTN
EMTN
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2020

2021
2021

31

31
30
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$14,597
21,672
(12,013)

$24,256

$2,188

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC

TMCC
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oOoOooodn
50
2021 12
SEC
2020 31 2021 31
SEC
364
2020 11 TMCC 100 TCPR
2022 31 2022
5.0 364 2019 11
TMCC TCPR 2023 31 2023
2025 5.0
5.0

2020 31 2021 31
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2020

3.2

TMCC
4.4

31

TMCC

2023

364

2021

™S

5.0

31

300

3.0

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

6.5
2021 31
2021 31
2.3 2022
2024 31
5.0
1.86 2020
2021 TMCC  TMS
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TMcC
1.8
2024

2020

2020

30
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TFS
TMCC
TFS
TFS 100
TFS 10
2021 31 90,318
TFS ( )TFS
)
TFS
30
1
2 TFS TFS
TFS
TFS

TFS TMCC TFS
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TMCC 100
TMCC 100,000
TMCC TMCC
TMCC
TMCC TFS TFS
TMCC TMCC TMCC
TMCC
TFS
TFS
TMCC TFS
TMCC
TFS
TMCC TFS TMCC TFS
TMCC
TCPR TFS TMCC TCPR
TCPR
TFS
TCPR TFS
TCPR TFS TCPR

TFS TCPR
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LIBOR
2017 LIBOR FCA
2021
2023 30
12 LIBOR
LIBOR 2021 12 31
LIBOR 2023 30
LIBOR ARR
LIBOR
ARR
ARR
ARR
LIBOR ARR SOFR
SOFR SOFR
LIBOR
2021
ASU  2020-04

LIBOR
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oOoOooodn
LIBOR LIBOR
2020 11 LIBOR ICE
2021 12 31 LIBOR
2021 FCA
12
LIBOR
SOFR
LIBOR
ARR
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TMCC TMCC

TMCC
TMCC
TMCC

12

2021 31

2020 31 2021 31
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2021

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
$110,069 $52,205 $23,671 $11,176  $6,210  $9,327  $7,480
3,718 1,229 834 524 373 251 507
(558) 194 (53)  (158)  (127) (95)  (319)
141 26 18 16 13 12 56

58 23 18 17 - - -

$113,428  $53,677  $24,488  $11,575 $6,469 $9,495 $7,724

99 191 54

2021 31

US GAAP
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2020 ASU  2016-13 — 326
ASU 2016-13
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15

2021

2021
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31

31
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FICO

FICO
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10 2021 31
108
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ALCO

100

ALCO
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12
100
2020 31 2021 31 100bp
100bp 100bp

2020 31 $(11.0) $44.1
2021 31 $(24.9) $7.6

100bp 2020

31 2021 31

LIBOR
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2021

2021

31

31

1SDA
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2020 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$160 $176 $176 $- $- $- $-
9 11 2 8 1 - -
250 249 - - 249 - -
604 601 - - 601 - -
188 197 - 16 112 66 3
95 95 59 12 10 3 11
75 72 13 5 33 12 9
$1,381 $1,401 $250 $41 $1,006 $81 $23
$2,419 $194 $855 $796 $574 $-
$3,820 $444 $896 $1,802 $655 $23

2021 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$217 $211 $211 $- $- $- $-
8 10 2 7 1 - -
196 196 - - 196 - -
177 187 - 8 61 118 -
79 80 42 13 11 3 11
49 52 9 7 19 10 7
$726 $736 $264 $35 $288 $131 $18
$3,201 $- $1,409 $1,048 $723 $21
$3,937 $264 $1,444 $1,336 $854 $39
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VaR
99

VaR

2021 31

$247
$247
$247
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TFS
TMCC 12
TMCC 50,000,000,000
T™MCC
2020 18

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
E14 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)

T™MCC 50,000,000,000
TMCC TMCC

2017

(The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Luxembourg Branch)
L-2453 2-4
(2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg)

(Vertigo Building - Polaris)
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TMcC
TMCC TMCC
2024

11
2023

2020 11
2022
TMcC

5.0

2025

TMCC  TCPR

TCPR
364

TMCC  TCPR

5.0

5.0

364

364
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364
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5.0

5.0

2020

5.0

oOoOooodn

2019
2022

2019
2021
5.0



2020
CSC
DSC
DSC
DSC

CSC

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TMNA
CsC DSC
TMNA CsC

DSC

CSC DSC
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100,000 91,500 8,500
91,500
50,000,000 915,000,000
1996 5,000 91,500 54 8,250 1,003 2,975
"
75024-5965
2-5
91,500 100
6565
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TMCC TMCC 2016 31 2017 31
2018 31 2020
2019 TMCC TFSIC 10
2020 2021
700 TFSIC
TMCC
TMCC
T™MCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC
)
1961 1990 T™S 2007 10 2013
™S
2012
2013
2013 2016
2013
2017 12
2016 2017 12
2016 2017
TFS 2016
TFS 2017 TFS
2016 TFSIC
2016
TMCC 2016
2018 TMCC
2018 TMCC
1970 10 2003 TMCC 2012 2014
2014 2015 ™S
2015 2017 12
2017 12
2019
2019 2019 TMCC
2017 12
2019 TMCC
2019 TMCC TFSIC
1971 30 1993 2007
2012 12
2013 2015 12
2016 2019
TFS
2019 T™MCC
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1961 12 28 1986 SMBC
SMBC 2012 2014
2014 2015
2015 2017
2017 2018
2018 2021
SMBC 2021
TFS
TFSIC
2021 TMCC
1959 10 29 1984 2012 2015
2015 2017
2015 2018
2017 2019
2017 2020 TMNA
2018 2019
2019 2019
2019
2020 2019
2020
TMCC TMNA
1959 18 1981 ™S T™S 2005 2007
2007 2012
2012 2017
2017 TMNA
™S
2017 TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC
25
1961
1971 30
1970 10
1964 10 1993 TMCC 2009
2011
2011 2014
TMCC
2014
2017 T™S
2017
2018 12 TMCC
2018 12 2019
TMCC
2019 TMCC
1966 1990 ™S 2013 12
2015 T™S
2015 2018 12
T™S
2018
12 TMCC
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1961 12 11 2002 TFSB 2008 12
2012 TFSB

2012 2018
TFSB
2016
2018 TFSB
2018 2019
TMCC

2019 2020
TMCC

2020 TMCC

2019
TFSB

1969 11 30 1993 ™S 2012
2013 TFSB
2013 2017
TMCC

2017
2019 TMCC

2019

1964 12 28 1999 T™S 2011
2015 ™S
2015
2017 ™S
2017 2019
11 TMNA
2019
2019 11 T™MCC

2019 2020 TMCC
2019 2020

TFSIC 2019
11 2020 TMNA

2020 TMCC
TFSIC

TMCC
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1A
IT

ARA

1A 1A

1A

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC

ARA
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OooooOodd
1A
TMCC 1A
31
2020 2021
$10,882 $11,254
199 -
422 397
865 225
$12,368 $11,876
10-K
10-Q
1983 THCC
SEC

TMCC
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2021 31

TMCC

T™MCC TMCC
2020 2021
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TMCC 2021

6,142,713
2015 ™S

2015
120
50
™S
55
T™MS
65

™S

2015

T™S

60

117/326

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

T™MS

™S

2021

2015

TMCC  TCPR
T™MS

™S

60

™S

™S

25

oOoOooodn

™S

62
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TMCC TMNA
TMNA
TMNA
2015 ™S
TMNA
a
b
TMNA
59.5
TMNA 60
2015 ™S
2015
T™MS T™MS
™S

T™S
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TMNA
2015 T™S
SERP
SERP
SERP
b SERP
c TMS
100
T™MS TMNA
T™S
TMNA
TMCC
TMNA
DCP
TMNA
15

TMNA
TMNA

SERP

TMCC
SERP
a SERP

T™MS

100

119/326

DCP

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

ERSP

SERP

62

SERP

SERP

DCP
T™S

10

T™MS
2015

DCP

25

ooooooo
TMNA
ERSP
2015
30
SERP
55
y ™S
SERP
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oOoOooodn
DCP DCP
T™MS TMNA
2017 DCP
TMCC
DCP 2016 TMNA
T™S
PULTIP TMCC
PULTIP
DCP
12 31
PULTIP
2016 PULTIP
TMCC PULTIP
2016 TMNA

2020 10 TMNA
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23

38

103

134

59

193

2020

2021

2021

SEC

31
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2021
109.65
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10-K

131

oOoOooodn

2021 31

TMCC 1934

SEC
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31
2019 2020 2021
8,694 |\ 953,207 [$ 8,775 |\ 962,179 [$ 8,481 |\ 929,942
2,235 | 245,068 2,558 | 280,485 2,905 | 318,533
711 77,961 696 76,316 413 45,285
11,640 | 1,276,326 12,029 | 1,318,980 11,799 | 1,293,760
6,009 | 757,572 6,820 | 747,813 5,932 | 650,444
2,747 | 301,209 2,834 | 310,748 2,302 | 252,414
1,984 | 217,546 2,375 | 260,419 3,565 | 390,902
904 99,124 933 | 102,303 956 | 104,825
292 32,018 322 35,307 410 44,957
3,180 | 348,687 3,630 | 398,030 4,931 | 540,684
372 40,790 590 64,694 426 46,711
1,385 | 151,865 1,561 | 171,164 1,487 | 163,050
446 48,904 455 49,891 369 40,461
2,203 | 241,559 2,606 | 285,748 2,282 | 250,221
977 | 107,128 1,024 | 112,282 2,649 | 290,463
182 19,956 111 12,171 632 69,299
795 |\ 87,172 [$ 913 [\ 100,110 [$ 2,017 |\ 221,164
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31
2019 2020 2021
$ 795 |\ 87,172 | $ 913 | \ 100,110 [ $ 2,017 | \ 221,164
2019 ()
(548)
2020 ) 11 1,206 13 1,425 9 987
(439)
2021 ()
(219)
2019 ()
(329 9 987 [¢)) (110) ae)|  (@,759)
2020
2021 548
20 2,193 12 1,316 @ (768)
$ 815 |\ 89,365 | $ 925 | \ 101,426 | $ 2,010 | \ 220,397
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2020 31 2021 31
$ 6,790 | \ 744,524 | $ 8,195 [ \ 898,582
1,739 190,681 1,957 214,585
3,820 418,863 4,820 528,513

2020 31 727
79,716 73,996 8,113,661 79,192 8,683,403
2021 31 1,178
129,168
36,387 3,989,835 37,091 4,067,028
2,823 309,542 2,473 271,164
$ 125,555 | \ 13,767,106 | $ 133,728 | \ 14,663,275
$ 97,740 | \ 10,717,191 | $ 109,725 | \ 12,031,346
5,458 598,470 2,860 313,599
7,854 861,191 5,548 608,338
111,052 12,176,852 118,133 12,953,283
2020 2021 31
100,000 915 100,330 915 100,330
91,500

2 219 2 219
15 1,645 8 877
13,571 1,488,060 14,670 1,608,566
14,503 1,590,254 15,595 1,709,992
$ 125,555 | \ 13,767,106 | $ 133,728 | \ 14,663,275

2020 31 2021 31
$ 12,375 | \ 1,356,919 | $ 21,745 | \ 2,384,339
5,586 612,505 6,599 723,580
131 14,364 89 9,759
$ 18,092 | \ 1,983,788 | $ 28,433 | \ 3,117,678
$ 14,568 | \ 1,597,381  $ 24,212 | \ 2,654,846
12 1,316 14 1,535
$ 14,580 | \ 1,598,697 | $ 24,226 | \ 2,656,381
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2018 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 9| $ 11,992 | $ 12,880
ASU  2014-09 . . 1 (122) (110)
— — — 795 795
_ — 20 — 20
— — — ) @)
2019 31 $ 915 | $ 2| s 3 (s 12,658 | $ 13,578
— — — 913 913
— — 12 — 12
2020 31 $ 915 | $ 2| % 15 |$ 13,571 | $ 14,503
ASU 2016-13 - . - (218) 218)
— — — 2,017 2,017
— — @) — @)
— — — (700) (700)
2021 31 $ 915 | $ 2| % 8 (s 14,670 | $ 15,595
2018 31 \ 100,330 | \ 219 | \ (3,180)| \ 1,314,923 | \ 1,412,292
ASU- 2014-09 — — 1,316 (13,377) (12,062)
— — — 87,172 87,172
— — 2,193 — 2,193
— — — (768) (768)
2019 31 \ 100,330 | \ 219 | \ 329 [\ 1,387,950 | \ 1,488,828
— — — 100,110 100,110
— — 1,316 — 1,316
2020 31 \ 100,330 | \ 219 | \ 1,645 [\ 1,488,060 | \ 1,590,254
ASU 2016-13 _ _ — (23,904) (23,904)
— — — 221,164 221,164
— — (768) — (768)
— — — (76,755) (76,755)
2021 31 \ 100,330 | \ 219 | \ 877 [\ 1,608,566 | \ 1,709,992
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31

2019 2020 2021
795 [ \ 87,172 |$ 913 [\ 100,110 [$ 2,017 |\ 221,164
7,023 770,072 6,930 759,875 6,049 663,273
.,346)| (257,239)|  (2.485)| (272,480)|  (2,496)| (273,686)
372 40,790 590 64,694 426 46,711
617 67,654 707 77,523 789 86,514
(938)|  (102,852) (515) (56,470) 1,401 153,620
0} (219) @7 (5.154) (149) (16,338)
— — 10 1,097 ®) (329)
(86) (9,430) (482) (52,851) 142 15,570
156 17,105 2 219 .,521)|  (276,428)
20 2,193 19 2,083 44) (4,825)
324 35,527 122 13,377 632 69,299
5,935 650,773 5,764 632,023 6,243 684,545

(1,251)| (137,172)|  (2,392)| (262,283)|  (2.215)|  (242,875)

1,740 190,791 345 37,829 422 46,272
2,457 269,410 1,200 131,580 932 102,194
(24,686)| (2,706,820)| (29,375)| (3,220,969)| (38,702)| (4,243,674)
24,082 | 2,640,591 25,668 | 2,814,496 28,009 | 3,071,187
(89) (9,759) O} (219) 4,793 525,552

(16,068)| (1,761,856)| (15,350)| (1,683,128)| (16,778)| (1,839,708)

11,395 | 1,249,462 11,775 | 1,291,129 11,821 | 1,296,173
(69)|  (62,391) (600) (65,790) (200) (21,930)
36 3,947 25 2,741 506 55,483
(63) (6,908) 1) (5,592) 79) (8,662)

(3,016)|  (330,704)|  (8,757)|  (960,205)| (11,491)| (1,259,988)
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31
2019 2020 2021
21,153 | 2,319,426 26,847 | 2,943,774 50,281 | 5,513,312
(23,624) (2,590,372)|  (23.375)| (2.563,069)|  (30,648)| (3.360,553)
2,022)| (221,712) 1,861 204,059 9,049)|  (992,223)

— — 3,000 328,950 — —
— — — — (3,000)| (328,950)

0) (219) 16 1,754 (13) (1,425)
— — (10) (1,097) @00)|  (76,755)
(4,495)| (492,877) 8,339 914,371 6,871 753,405
(1,576)| (172,808) 5,346 586,189 1,623 177,962
4,759 521,824 3,183 349,016 8,529 935,205

$ 3,183 |\ 349,016 |$ 8,529 [\ 935,205 [$ 10,152 [\1,113,167

$ 2,239 [\ 245,506 |$ 2,568 [\ 281,581 [$ 2,445 |\ 268,094
$ 42 |\ 4,605 | $ 269 |\ 29,49% |$ 2,463 |\ 270,068
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TMCC
TFS 100
TFSIC 100
TFS T™C 100 TFS
T™C T™MCC

T™CC

100
T™MIS

™IS
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2021 31
22 11
2021 31 24

2020

DSC

2020 THCC Inc.

2020
MPP
TMCC
2021
2021 24

CSC DSC
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US GAAP
12
TMCC 100
VIE
US GAAP
2020
ASU 2016-13
326 ASU 2016-13 ASU 2016-13
ASU 2016-13
ASU 2016-13
292 218

2020 190
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820
ASU  2019-04
825
825
326

ASU  2018-17 810

2020 FASB ASU  2020-04

2022 12 31
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815
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2020 10 FASB ASU  2020-08 310-20

ASU 2021

2020
ASU  2016-13

2021
31
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2020 31
$ 160 $ 16 $ — $ 176
9 2 — 11
250 — @ 249
604 — ®) 601
188 10 @ 197
47 2 — 49
1 — — 1
47 — ®) 45
75 — ®) 72
$ 1,381 $ 30 $ 10) s 1,401
2,419
$ 3,820
2021 31
$ 217 $ 4 $ ) s 211
8 2 — 10
196 — — 196
177 12 @ 187
31 1 — 32
1 — — 1
47 2 @ 47
49 3 — 52
$ 726 $ 24 $ 14 s 736
4,084
$ 4,820

250
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10

10

2020

31

12

12
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oOoOooodn

31
2019 2020 2021
$ 12 s 9 $ 20
$ — $ ()
$ 14 $ 41 $ 114
$ — $ 5 $ 15
2021
$ 232 $ 232
133 139
153 156
80 77
128 132
$ 726 $ 736
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2021 2020 31

ASU 2016-13

2021 31 187

ASU 2016-13

120
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2020 31 2021 31
$ 57,088 $ 66,991
17,873 13,642
74,961 80,633
890 1,145
(1,128) (1,408)
(486) (1,075)
(241) (103)
727) (1,178)
$ 73,996 $ 79,192

2020 2021 31 12.7 22.1

31

2022 $ 15,797 $ 8,155
2023 15,321 1,727
2024 13,510 984
2025 10,960 588
2026 7,551 778
3,852 1,410
$ 66,991 $ 13,642
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29
30

60

90

2020

30
60
90
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31
2016
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$32,026 $16,047 $ 8,972 $ 5,977 $ 2,435 $ 496  $ 65,953
59
147 145 114 83 46 27 562
89 37 39 28 21 11 8 144
18 18 13 9 5 6 69
$ 32,228  $ 16,249 $ 9.127 $ 6,000 $ 2.497 $ 537 $ 66,728
2021 31 160
120
31
2020 31
29 $ 56,064
59 717
89 203
104
$ 57,088
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2021 31
2016

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 5,893 $ 5,893
— — — — — — 218 218
— — — — — — 35 35
— — — — — — 11 11
$ — $ — $  — $  — $ — $ — $ 6,157 $ 6,157
$ 1,874 $ 320 $ 59 $ 356 $ 312 $ 1,493 $ — $ 4,951
8 49 3 20 9 99 — 188
13 — — — 12 17 — 42
— — — 13 9 — — 22
$ 1,895 $ 369 $ 599 $ 389 $ 342 $ 1,609 $ — $ 5,203
$ 503 $ 334 $ 200 $ 41 $ 106 $ 176 $ 878 $ 2,238
1 — 6 1 — 19 9 36
1 — — — 7 — — 8
505 $ 334 $ 206 $ 42 $ 113 $ 195 $ 887 $ 2,282
2,400 $ 703 $ 805 $ 431 $ 455 $ 1,804  $ 7,044 $ 13,642
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31
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Ooooood
2021 31 27
2020 31
$ 8,750 $ 3,974 $ 3,132 $ 15,856
962 576 195 1,733
92 55 92 239
22 23 — 45
$ 9,826 $ 4,628 $ 3,419 $ 17,873
120
30
2020 31
90
30 59 60 89 90
29
$ 717 $ 203 $ 104 $ 1,024 $56,064 $ 57,088 $ 66
— — — — 9,826 9,826 —
— — 1 1 4,627 4,628 —
_ _ — — 3,419 3,419 —
$ 717 $ 203 $ 105 $ 1,025 $73,936 $ 74,91 $ 66
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2021 31
90
30 59 60 89 90
29
$ 562 $ 144  $ 69 $ 775  $ 65,953 $ 66,728 $ 39
— — — — 6,157 6,157 —
— — — — 5,203 5,203 —
— — — — 2,282 2,282 —
$ 562 $ 144 3 69 $ 775 $ 79,595 $ 80,370 % 39
2021 31 187
2021 2020
2021 2020
2021 2020
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2021 COVID-19

29

2020 ASU 2016-13
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2020 ASU  2016-13
2020 10-K

TMCC

FICO

FICO
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2019
2020
« )
2020 31
TMNA
2020
ASU 2016-13
2021
( ) 2020
« )
2021 31
1,028

31

31
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2020 31
$ 304 $ 195 $ 499
(358) 12) (370)
50 — 50
490 58 548
$ 486 $ 241 $ 727

TMNA 1,047

140
2021 31
$ 486 $ 241 $ 727
281 11 292
(287) — (287)
48 9 57
547 (121) 426
$ 1,075 $ 140 $ 1,215
37
TMNA
162

TMNA
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2021

2016-13

COVID-19

292

488

12
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COVID-19
196
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2020

2020

(

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

) 2020

31

31

ASU 2016-13

2021

31

7.9
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90
2020 31 2021 31
$ 48,638 $ 48,337
(223) (101)
(1,962) (1,759)
(9,976) (9,386)
(90) —
$ 36,387 $ 37,001
9.3
5,969
3,807
1,505
101
;
11,389
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2021 31

2020 31 2021 31
$ 30,362 $ 1,410 $ 44,125 $ 1,026
488 27 7,274 330
$ 30,850 $ 1,437 $ 51,399 $ 1,356
(966) (840)
(420) (462)
$ 51 $ 54
$ 69,079 $ 1,826 $ 55,062 $ 1,142
13,181 1,290 4,321 243
$ 82,260 $ 3,116 $ 59,383 $ 1,385
(966) (840)
(2,105) (544)
$ 45 $ 1

2021 2020 31 29 10

2021 2020 31 10

149/326



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

31

2019 2020 2021
$ 2,559 $ 2,488 $ 1,954
(53) 180 420
2,506 2,668 2,374
(1,078) (703) 1,402
1,015 650 (1,351)
304 219 (123)
$ 2,747 $ 2,834 $ 2,302

2020 31 2021 31

$ 83,477 $ 83,172 2.07 $ 85,759 $ 85,513 1.31
14,597 14,568 2.13 24,256 24,212 1.29
$ 98,074 $ 97,740 2.08 $ 110,015  $ 109,725 1.31
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2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

31

27.0

2049
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$ 52,106
23,564

11,196

6,245

9,327

7,577

(290)

$ 109,725

2021 2020 31 17.0



364
2020 11

5.0
2023

2020

TMCC

2025

6.5

100

3.2

5.0

2022
2019 11

2021
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TCPR
364
TMCC  TCPR
5.0

2020 31
364
2021 31



TMCC
2023
4.4

2021

TMCC

5.0

2021

2024 2.3

2020 31

T™MS

2020
2020 30

™S

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE VIE

VIE
VIE
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TMCC

31

1.8

2025

TMCC

5.0

ooooood
2022
300
1.86 3.0
2021
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE



VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
VIE

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
2020 31
VIE VIE
694 $ 12,375 $ 5 10,933 % 10
302 5,586 126 3,635 2
9% $ 17,961 $ 131 14,568  $ 12
2021 31
VIE VIE
1,521 $ 21,745 $ 46 19,665 $ 13
436 6,599 43 4,547 1
1,957 $ 28,344 $ 89 24,212 $ 14
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VIE TMCC
VIE TMCC TMCC
VIE 2021 2020 31 1,409 1,182

TMCC VIE
ASU 2016-13

2021 31
VIE TMCC

VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
TMCC

TMCC
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TMNA
TDIG
TMNA
VIE

2021 2020 31
TDIG 2021 2020 2019

VIE
2021 2020 31

2020 31 2021 31
$ 1,226 $ 2,338
139 141
1,365 2,479
100 100
$ 1,465 $ 2,579

TMCC
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36

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

31

2019

2021
30
2032
2021 2020 31
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12

36 2020

TMNA

93 102

TMCC

2021 31

18
16
13
12
56

$ 141

(16)

$ 125
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31
10

2020

TMCC

2031 10

TMCC
31

TMCC
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31

ROU
2021
ROU
100
2028 20 2029
2032 10 T™MCC
T™CC
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50

0oooood
111
8.56

2.77
22
15
2030
2021



31

2021

2020

31
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OooooOodd
2020 11 24 CFPB )
10
TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
2015
2015
25 120
60
2021 2020 2019
TMCC
30
66.67
100 25

2015

2021 2020 2019 T™MCC
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TMNA
55
2021 2020
11
TMCC TFSIC
TMCC
TMCC
TMNA  TFSIC TMCC

10

2019

TMCC
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OoOoOoOoOodno
TMCC
TMCC TFSIC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TFSIC TMCC
31
2019 2020 2021
$ (55) $ (19) 2,756
76 120 386
4 8 11
25 109 3,153
207 145 (2,243)
(49) (141) (276)
1) (2) (2)
157 2 (2,521)
$ 182 $ 111 632
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31
2019 2020 2021
21.0 21.0 21.0
4.6 4.0 3.9
1.3 3.9 0.2)
(1.0) (3.7 (0.5)
(2.8) (5.6) —
1.9 (1.0) 0.2)
(0.5) — 0.1)
18.6 10.8 23.9

2021 2020

2021 2020 2019

31
2020 2021

$ 5,180 $ 2,765
629 377
254 290
14 34
83 82

$ 6,160 $ 3,548
370 421
188 187
100 29
25 27
32 33
715 697
@as3) Q)

$ 702 $ 688

$ 5,458 $ 2,860

2020 2021 31
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2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
25 37
2023
2021 31
2020 31
52 10
2021 31 2020 31
2028
2021 31 2020 31
13
2017
2021 2020 31 251 243
2021 31 2020 31 TMNA
35 47
2021 2020 31 TMCC
T™MCC TFSIC

TFSB
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2021
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2020

31

2020

2019

31

2019

12
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2021
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Ogoooood
31
2019 2020 2021
$ 6 $ 7 $ 19
1 12 1
— — 2
— — ()
$ 7 $ 19 $ 15
14 17
2021 2020 2019 31
2021
2020 2019 2018
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31
2019 2020 2021
$ 1,930 $ 2,065 $ 1,997
$ (29) $ (59) $ (113)
$ 96 $ 9% $ 117
$ 181 $ 181 $ 173
$ 16 $ 26 $ 18
$ 95 $ 102 $ 91
$ (©)] $ — $ —
2020 31 2021 31
$ 276 $ 6
$ 601 $ 196
$ 112 $ 140
$ (1,065) $ (1,156)
$ (100) $ (236)
$ (1,941) $ (1,528)
$ 1,175 $ 869
$ 97 $ 83
$ 344 $ 352
$ 220 $ 306
$ 3,032 $ 19
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TMCC  TMNA
31
TMNA

2021

TMCC TFS
TMCC

TCPR TMCC

TMCC

2021

2021 mMcC

2020

5.0

TMCC

™

TMNA

TMCC

TFS

2020

NA

30

TFS
TFS

2021
8.4
7.1
31

T™MS

TMCC

184

2021

TFSIC

TMCC
TMCC
TMCC

2020

T™S

TMCC
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113

31 2020

700

TFS

TFS
31

2021 2020
6.8

2025

2021

31

31

1.86

ooooood
2020

250

3.0

2021
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TMCC
TMCC TFSB TMCC  TFSB
60
2021 2020 31 TMCC
15 22

TMCC

TMCC TMNA

TMCC TMNA
TMCC
TMCC  TFSB TFSB TMCC TFSB
TMCC  TFSB TMCC TMCC TFSB
TMCC TFSB TFS TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC TCPR TMNA
TMCC  TMNA
2032 CSC 2029
2026
TMCC

TMNA
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TMCC

TMCC

TMNA

™IS

TMNA

TMNA

TMNA

10

TMCC

™IS

™IS

TMNA
TMNA

99
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2021 2020 31 120
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Ooooooog
2020 31

174 $ 2 3 — 3 — 3 176
— 11 — — 11
_ 249 — — 249
— 601 — — 601
— 197 — — 197
— 49 — — 49
— — 1 — 1
— — 45 — 45
— — 72 — 72
174 1,109 118 — 1,401
746
1,673 — — — 1,673
1,673 — — — 2,419
1,847 1,109 118 — 3,820
— 1,410 — — 1,410
— 27 — — 27

— — — (1,386) (1,386)
— 1,437 — (1,386) 51
1,847 2,546 118 (1,386) 3,871

— (1,826) — — (1,826)

— (1,290) — — (1,290)
— — — 3,071 3,071

— (3,116) — 3,071 45)
1,847 $  (570) $ 118 $ 1,685 $ 3,82

171/326



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

ooooodd
2021 31

$ 209 $ 2 3 — 8 — 3 211
— 10 — — 10
20 176 — — 196
— 187 — — 187
— 32 — — 32
— — 1 — 1
— 5 42 — 47
— 19 33 — 52
229 431 76 — 736
772
2,429 — — — 2,429
883 — — — 883
3,312 — — — 4,084
3,541 431 76 — 4,820
— 1,026 — — 1,026
_ 330 — — 330

— — — (1,302) (1,302)
— 1,356 — (1,302) 54
3,541 1,787 76 (1,302) 4,874

— (1,142) — — (1,142)

— (243) — — (243)
— — — 1,384 1,384

— (1,385) — 1,384 [€))
$ 3,541 $ 402 3 7% $ 82 $ 4,873

2021 2020 31

2021 2020 31
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2020 31
$ 56,360 $ — 3 — 57,303 $ 57,303
9,672 — — 9,637 9,637
4,544 —_ — 4,140 4,140
3,308 — — 2,811 2,811
$ 83,172  $ — $ 82,429 $ 560 $ 82,989
14,568 — — 14,608 14,608

2021 31
$ 65,808 $ — $ — $ 69,007 $ 69,007
6,132 — — 6,158 6,158
5,142 — — 5,224 5,224
2,154 — — 2,171 2,171
$ 85,513 $ — $ 86,205 $ 555 $ 86,760
24,212 — — 24,478 24,478

ASU 2016-13
TMCC
2021 2020 31 140 109
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14

™IS

2019 31
$ 11,640 $ — $ — $ 11,640
6,909 — — 6,909

2,769 — 22) 2,747

1,962 — 22 1,984

_ 904 — 904

188 126 22) 292

2,150 1,030 — 3,180

372 — — 372

1,038 347 — 1,385

_ 446 — 446

1,410 793 — 2,203

740 237 — 977

147 35 — 182

$ 593 $ 202 $ — $ 795
$ 112,615 $ 5,066 $  (1,165) $ 116,516
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OooooOodd

2020 31

$ 12,029 $ — $ — $ 12,029

6,820 — — 6,820

2,854 — (20) 2,834

2,355 — 20 2,375

— 933 — 933

155 187 (20) 322

2,510 1,120 — 3,630

590 — — 590

1,197 364 — 1,561

_ 455 — 455

1,787 819 — 2,606

723 301 — 1,024

39 72 — 111

$ 684 $ 229 $ — $ 913

$ 121,180 $ 5,520 $  (1,145) $ 125,555
2021 31

$ 11,799 $ — $ — $ 11,799

5,932 — — 5,932

2,302 — — 2,302

3,565 — — 3,565

— 956 — 956

93 317 — 410

3,658 1,273 — 4,931

426 — — 426

1,124 363 — 1,487

— 369 — 369

1,550 732 — 2,282

2,108 541 — 2,649

502 130 — 632

$ 1,606 $ 411 $ — $ 2,017

$ 127,726 $ 6,149 $ (147) $ 133,728
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2021 2020 31
83 84 ASU  2014-09
2021 31
2020 31 2021 31
2021 696

2022 710

1771326

1.8
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2020 31
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2021 2020 31 ™IS
15
2020 31

$ 2,184 $ 2,197 $ 2,212 $ 2,182

589 638 661 670

190 183 171 152

2,963 3,018 3,044 3,004

1,625 1,583 1,712 1,900

697 613 755 769

641 822 577 335

229 232 231 241

118 97 57 50

988 1,151 865 626

75 61 128 326

337 358 406 460

113 115 116 111

525 534 650 897

463 617 215 @71)

104 158 34 (185)

$ 359 $ 459 $ 181 $ (86)
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2021 31

$ 2,129 $ 2,114 $ 2,122 $ 2,116
672 723 749 761

111 98 103 101

2,912 2,935 2,974 2,978
1,685 1,349 1,450 1,448

548 495 491 768

679 1,001 1,033 762

235 238 241 242

176 90 179 (35)

1,090 1,419 1,453 969

183 65 118 60

345 389 354 399

75 92 98 104

603 546 570 563

487 873 883 406

113 218 215 86

$ 374 $ 655 $ 668 $ 32
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

{Dollars v milhions)

Years ended March 31,

2020 2020 2019
Fimancing nevenncs:
Uperating lease § BaAs1 5 8775 5 8694
Reetnil 2,905 1558 2235
Ihealer A15 0 711
Tl linancing revemies 11,799 12029 11640
Drepreciation on operating benses 5,932 6820 6904
Interest expense 2302 2R3 247
el finmemg revennes 1,565 1378 1.4
Voluntary prodeciion confracd revenses and insumanee eamed prenaiums 956 931 S
Tnvestment ad other income, net 410 - 292
Mt !‘lrum-cinﬁ revenues and other revenues 4,951 1.1"1."»1.1 11=0
Expenses;
Provaspon for crodsl Tosues il R n
Chperating and ad rative 1487 1,561 1,383
Violuntary protection contract expenses and msurance losses e 455 S L
Total expenses 1262 2,606 2203
Income before ineome tanes 2,649 1024 w717
Provisson fod mconse lnxnes. 632 111 182
el oot § 10017 % i % 15
COMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o Wearsewded March 31,
2021 2020 2019
et mcaane 5 2M7 8 a3 5 o5

Oher comprehensive income, o of s
et unrealized gains on nvailablesf-sale

miarkelable securnties [pel of ax provisien

al (2, (54) and (35), respectively] L 13 I
Reclassilication adpstment for net {gans) bosses on

available-for-sale marketable secunties inchwled in

mvestment and other meome, net [net of nx

provasion (benefity of 55, 50 and (53}, respectively| (16} i) 9
Onher comprchensive {loss) siscome (T 12 20
Comprchensive incm: 5 2000 $ 925 % g15

Refer to the accompanying Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Stiements.

7
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Dollars in millions except share data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalems

Resiricied cash and cash equivalents

Investmens in nurketable securilics

Finafice receivables, net of allowance for credit bosses of S1.178 and
727

Invesimens in operaiting leases, nel

Oiher asscls

Tokal assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Db

Deferred income taxes

Oither liabilitics

Total lnatalities

Commitments and contingencics (Refer io Note )

Sharcholder's couaty:

C'apiul stock, no par vilue (100,000 shares authorized; 91500 issucd
and cutstanding) o March 31, 2021 and 2020

Additional paid-in capial

Accumulbated other comprehensive income

Retained camings

Total sharelolder's cquity

Total linbilities and sharcholder's equity

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

T following table presenis i asseis and liabalities of our consolidated variable interest entities (Reler 1o Mote §).

ASSETS

Finance receivables, net
Investmems in operating leases, nel
Oither aseels

Total assecis

LIABILITIES
Db

Cither liabilitics
Total linbalitics

Refer to the sccompanying Motes 10 Consolidated Financial Stniements,

T4
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March 31, March 31,
2021 oo
2195 5 6, T
1,957 1,730
4 K 3,820
79,1932 T3.9%0
37481 36,387
2473 2823
133,74 & 125,333
109725 % 97,740
2860 5458
5548 7,854
118,133 111,082
015 13
2 2
.3 I5
14,670 13,371
15,595 14,500
133,728 & 125,555
Murch 31, March 31,
2021 2020
21L745 & 12,373
6,59 5,586
B _13
B4 8 18,092
247212 § 14,568
14 12
2436 § 14,580
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Bakance at March 21, 2018

Cumnilative-elfect of adopiion of ASL 2014-09

el income

Onher compeehensive income, net of tx

Dividends, net of 1ax
Balance at March 21, 2019

et imcome

Chther comprehensive income, net of tax

Balance at March 31, 2020

Cumnulative-cifect of adoption of ASL 2016-13

et income

Oiher comprehensive loss, net of tx

Dividends
Bakange a1 March 11, 202

{Dollars im millions)

Additional
Cagaital padd=in

Accumulated
other
compreliensive  Retamed

siock capital (s} incoime carnings Toaul
5 a415 = 25 (2908 11992 5 |2880
3. 12 (122} (1oy
- s - 795 795
- = 0 - 20
=] . - H_____(D
5 915 § 25 1 5 12658 5 13578
- - M3 13
= : 1 - 12
5 915 5 2.8 15 § 13571 5 14503
s z - (218) (218)
- - - 27 217
- i {71 - (7
. . - [ TOHE) LU
5 415 5 25 55 4670 5 15,593

Refer to the accompanying Motes 10 Conselidaied Financial Siiements,

75
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Dollars im millions)

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooOooood

Yeurs eoded Mach 11,

L] _amp 0 3013
Cash flows from operating aetivities:
Net income % M7 8 U HE - a5
Adgistmenis ke recancile net income 1o net cash provided by operating
nctivities:
Dieprecation and amodizataon k5 fa, B ) 7,023
Recognition of delomed income (2A%6) [24%5) (2.H6)
Provision for credil losses 16 S90 in
Amortization of defemed costs TED Tay 617
Fuosreign curreney and other adjastmsents to the carming value of
debit, nal 1 Aal {515) (93E)
Mol gains from imvesiments in marketable securities (145 (47} 2y
Nel change in:
Dierivalive pssets {3} 10 N
Enher assels and sccmel imlerest 142 1452 [E14]
Dieferned income taxes (2521) . 156
Perreative liahilities [#4) 4] n
Otber liabilities 612 _i3 o
Met cush provided by opemtmg nctivities f, 241 5,76 5,015
Cash flows from investing sctivities:
Parchase of mvestments i marketable secunties (2.215) {2,392} (1,250)
Procecds from sales of invesiments in marketable securities 411 343 1,740
Procecds Trom malurities of mviesinients m nakelable secuities 433 1,200 2457
Acipuisiton of finance recervables (38,702) {29,375) (24,686)
Caollection of finance receivabies 28 AW 25 bl 24,082
Net chanpe in whobesale and certan workang capital recenvables 4,193 (2} iR}
Acipueion of invesiments inoperaling besies {16,778} {15350) o L Ty
Disposals ol investments in eperating leases 11821 11,775 11395
Lomg leran Joans (o allilaies [FLUL [leu [Hi%)
Payments ¢n bong term boans from affiliates 506 Fis 13
Oither, net {74} (51} 163}
et cash wsed o mvesting sclivities (1191 (&, 757} (3,016)
Cash Nows Trom fmancing activilies:
Proceeds fnom issuance of deby 50281 26,847 21,153
Paymets on dehi [RIFEHE {23, 375) {23624
Met change in commercaal paper and other short-ierm financing (T} (. 1] (2,022)
Leam from affiliate - 3, -
Payment on loan from affiliate (3 400) - -
Net champe in linanemg suppent provided by affiliates (13} I (2
[Mvidend paid __Tou (L] ir
Mt cashy pnn‘il.lu.llry'{umd:illi lnancmg aclivilies E,‘ﬁ-?_f & A3 q:l,ﬂ-’il}_'r
Mef increase (devrease) in cash and cash equivalenis and restncied cosh and
cash equivalents 1623 LR T (1,576)
Cash and cash equivalents and resticted cash and cash equivalents i the
begimnang of the perid K529 1.1%3 4,759
Cash nned cosh equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalenis s the
end of the poried 5 10,152 % §520 § 3,183
Supplemental disclosures,
Interest pasd, net 5 2445 8 2,568 § 2,139
Imgomme: taxes paid, met 5 2463 8 - 42

Refer to the accompanying Notes 9 Coseliduied Financial Stiements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

ifi g Pollici

Nafwre of Operations

Toyota Motor Credii Corporation (“TMOT) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyoin Financial Services Intemational
Corporation (TFS1C™), a Californi corporation, which is 1 wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyveta Fiancial Services
Corparation (“TFSC), a Japanese corporation. TFSC, in turm, is a whelly-owned subsidiary of Tovow Motor
Corparation (“THC™), a Japanese corporation. TFSC munages TMC's worldwide financiil services operations.
References herein o e "Comgany™, “we™, o™, wnd "us™ denole TMOC und its consolidaied subsidianes, TMCC is
miwketed under the bramds of Toyots Financial Services, Lesus Fimncial Services, and Masda Financizl Services.

We provide a varicty of linance and velumary vehicle and payment protection products and services 1o aulorized
Tovotn and Lexus dealers or dealer proups, private label dealers or dealer groups, and. 1o o lesser extent, other
domestic and mnpon franchisce dealers (collectively refermed 1o as “dealers™) and their customers in the United States of
Amenca (excluding Howmii) (ibe “1L1.5.") and Puerto Rico, Our business ik substantiolly dependent wpon the sale of
Toyotw, Lexus, and privite label vehicles.

Chir products and services il primanly into the fllowing cilepones.

- Finance Cperations « We acquire retml imstaliment sales contracts froan dealers in the U5, and Puerto
Rico {"retail coniracis™ and leasing coniracis accounied for as operaiing leases (“lease comracts™) Mrom
dealers in the U.S. We collectvely refer to our retail and lease contrmacts as the “consumer porifolio.™ We
also provide dealer financing, inchiding wholesale fnancing, working capital boans, revolving lings of
credit and real estale financing to dealers in the LS. and Puerio Rico. We collectively reler to our dealer
financing portfolio as the “dealer portfolio,”

- Volwntary Provection Operations = Through Teyeia Motor Insurimee Services, Ine. a whallv-owned
subsidiary, and its insurance company subsidianes (collectively referred 1o as “TMIS"), we provide
miagketing, underwriting, and claims adminisieation for voluntary vehicle and payment protection prodiscts
sold by dealers i the ULS, Our volumtary vehicle and paynent profection products mclude vehicle service,
guaneed auto proteciion, prepaid miinicnance, excess weas mnd use, tire wid wlee] prowection, key
replacement protection, and used vehicle limuted warranty contracts {“voluntary protection products™).
TMIS also provides coverage and relmed sdmanistrative services 1o certnin of our afTilkotes in the L5,

Our finance operntions are located in the ULS. and Puerto Rico with earmning assels principally sourced through Tovota,
Lexus, and private label dealers. As of Masch 31, 2021, approsamuicly 22 percent of rotail and lease contrigts were
concentrated in California, || percent in Texas, 7 percent in New Yook, and 5 percent in New Jersey. Our voluniary
protection operitions are located inthe LS, As of March 31, 2021, approximately 24 percent of volhmitary protection
contracts were concentrated in California, 6 percent in New York, and 5 percent in Marviand, Virgin, and Arizonn,
respectively. Any material adverse changes io the cocnomics or applicable laws in ihese siaies could have an adverse
elfect on our fimmeial condition and results of opemations.

T
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dallars i millions)

{Mhver Matfers

In fiscal 2020, we announced the resimeciuring of oor field operations to betier serve our dealer parimers by
streamlining our feld office structure and investing o new technology. This restracturing s complete, and our Geld
apermions now consist of three DSCs located in Chandler, Arizona (serving the Wist region), Plano, Texas (scrving
the Central region), and Alpharetia, Georgia (serving (the East region).

Ow April |, 2020, TMCC began providing private labek Moancial services o third-pany awomotive and mobility
companies connnencing willi e provision of services o Maada Motor of America, Ing, *“Masda™). We currently
offer exclusive private label automotive retail, lease, and dealer Mnancing products and services marketed under the
brand Maedu Fiancial Services 1o Masda customers amd dealers in the United Stmes. On August 1, 2020, we
lmmched a full suite of voluntary prodection products under the name of Mueda Protection Producis (MPFP). The
wgrecment with Maeda 1s for an inital werm of opproximately five years, We are carrently leveraging our existing
processes and personned to originate and service the new assets, however, we will continue to evalumte the privine Label
Timcncial services business, wlich may include parmening with or iransitioning the business 1o our affilines, some of
which are not consolidated with TMCC. We have also maode cerain technology mvesiments to suppon the Maeda
program and futere prvate label customers, We did ol aoquire any existing Mazda assets o habilines pursiani 1o the
apreement and our launch costs were not significant in fiscal year 3021,

Oy March 24, 2021, we announced that we will restructure our cusiomer service operations over ihe nexi two years o
better serve our customcrs by relocating and sircamlining the cusiomer service operation, moving our three regional
CSCs 10 be co-located with regbonal DSCs, and livesting i new echivolopy, Cosis associaed with (ds festruciure ane
n expecied 1o be significant.

TR
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

Rasix of Prexentation and Principles of Cowsolidation

Chir peconming and firancial reporting policies conform io acoounting principbes penerally acoepied in the United
States of America (“US. GAAF)Y. Related panty transactions presented i the Consolidmed Fmancial Stalements are
disclosed in Mote 12 - Relmed Pany Transaciions.

The consolidated financial siaements include the accounts of TMCC, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and all variable
imtenest cnities CVIE™) of which we are (he primary beneliciary, Al intercompany trmnsactions and balimees huve
been eliminaxed.

Ulse af Estimtes

The preparation of financial sivlements in conformidly with US, GAAP requires management to make estimaies and
assaumptions thot affect the reported amounts of asscts and liabilitics and the disclosure of contingent asscis and
Ihabililies an the date of the Gnancial simenents aid the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during e
reporiing penod.  Becouse of inherent uncentainty involved in making estimates, actual resulis could differ from those
eetimates and assurnptions. The accounting estimates Ut are most important (o our busingss are the sccumulied
depreciation related to our investments in operating leases and the allowance for credst losses.

Kignificant Aceennting Policies
Chr significant sccounting policics are found in the respective Mote for which the policy s apphicable,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars im millions)

Revently Adopted Accenniing Cuidance
O Apeil |, 200240, we adopeced the following new accouniing standards:

Financiul frestronemis — Credif Liosses

We adopied Accounting Swndards Update (“ASUT) 200613, Fisaweial Fastrnments - Cregit Losses i Topic 326);
Meaxyrewent of Credit Loxses o Financiol fnstrmenis (ASU 2006=13"), along with the subsequently isswed
guidimece smending and clarifying virious aspecis of ASU 2016-13, using the modified reirospective meilod as
required. In accordance with (hat method, the compartive penod’s mformiion contimes 1o be reporied wider the
relevam aocounting guidance in effect for thai period. Upon adoption of ASL 2006-13, the incurred loss impairment
method was replaced wath a new impainment moded that reflects Lifomme expected losses for our finanee reccivithles,
The adoption of ASL 20016-13 resulicd in a curmulstive-effect adjustmient o decrease opening retnined camings by
approximately 3318 million, net of wxes, resulting from a pretax increase to our allowance for credit losses on finance
receivables of approximately $292 million. Additionally, we have changed the presentation of accrued inferest related
1o lance receivables i the Conselidaied Balance Sheets from Finance receivables, net to Oiher asseis. As of April |,
202tk we have reclassified aceneed interest of $190 million from Finance receivables, oct 1o Other assets. The
adoption ol his new guidance did nisd fesull in o tiaterial impact 1o our avidlable-for-sale deby securities ponlolio,

Refer to Moie 2 — Investmenis in Marketable Secunities, Note 3 — Finance Receivables, Met, and Note 4 — Allowance
fior Credin Losses for additonal informarion

In conjunction with the adoption of ASU 201613, we updaied our depreciation policy for operming leases so that the
usefil life of the vehicles mcorporates our historical experience on early lenninamions due 1o customer defaulis. As a
resull, we changed the prescntntion for reporting carly termination expenscs related o customer defaulis on
invesimenss in operaiing leases. We now preseni twe elfects of operaling lease early ierminatbons xs parn of
accumnulivied depreciation within Investments in opersting leases, net in the Consolidsted Balance Sheets and
Deprecintion on operating beases in (he Consalidated Stmements of Ingome, The comparative period”s information
continues to be reported under the relevant accounting presentmion in cffect for that period.  Refer 1o Note 5 -
Inivestments i Operating Leases, Met foe additionnd information,

(hher Recently Adopied Standards

We adopted ASU 200813, Farr Valie Measaremen! (Togpic 8200, which modifics disclosure requirements related to
fair value measurement. The adoption of this guidance did not have a matenal impact on our consolidated fmancial
stagements and relaed diselosures.

We adopted ASL 2008-15, Intangiiles — Croodvwill aod Ciher-infernal-Uise Koftware, which aligms the accounting for
cosls ingumed 1o mmplement o cloud computing arrangement that is a serviee anmngement with the guidanee on
capitalizing costs associated with developing or obtaining imemal-use soflware. The adoption of this puidance did no
have a material impact on our consolidated fnancial staements and relared disclosures.

We adopted ASU 2009404, Condyffcotion fmprovewsents to Sopic 326, Fimancial fnstraments-Creoii Losses, Topic 815,
Dertviitives amd Hadging, and Tople 825, Finoeeiel Tnsirmineiss. The adoption of this guidsnce reloed to Topic 815,
Derivitives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Fusmcial Instraments did wot have a material impast on ouwr consolidated
Minancial statements and selated disclosures. The impact on our consolidated financial stvements for Topic 326,
Financial Instrumenis — Credit Losses is discussed above.

We adopted ASU 200%-17, Covsoltdation ¢Topic #10), which requires that an indirect imerest held through related
parties in common control ammngenents are to be considered on a proportional basis for determining whether fees paid
1o decision makers and service providers are vaniable imeresis. The adopiion of this guidance did not have a maierial
impact on our cousolidmed fnancial statements and related disclosures.

Rib
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars m millions)

Aceannting Guidanee Isswed Bl Not Yot Adepied

In March 20, ihe FASE issned ASL 20M0-04, Reference Rate Refarm Topic 84807 Facilitation af ibe Effocis of
Keferemce Bate Reform an Finanow! Reportmg, along with subsequently isswed puidince, which provides tamporany
optionid expediems and exceptions for applving generally accepted accounting principles to fransactions affecied by
reference e reform i certain criteria are mset. Entities may apply (e provisions of the new stundand as of the
beginming of the repoming persod when (he eleciion is made. The provisiens of this update are available umil
December 31, 2022, We plan 1o adopt this guidance on April 1, 2021, The adoption of this guidance will not luve a
mserial impact on our consolidated Mmancial statemems and relaed disclosures,

In Oiober 2020, the FASE issued ASU 2020-08, Codiffeation fagpronvements to Sultapic 310-200 Receivalles-
Nonrefundable Fees and Cfver Caosts, which requires an emtity 1o recvitlumte the nmontization peried for investmients in
AFS callable debt securitics held ot o premium eoch reporting period.  The premium is amartized 10 the carliest call
date of the debd security. This ASU is effective for us on April 1, 2021, The adoption of this guidance will not have a
misenal impact on our consolidated fmancial statemems and relmed disclosures,

|l
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars m millions)

Cash ond cavly sgquivalents

Cash and eash equivalenis represent highly liquid onesiments with madiritics of three months or kess from ihe daie of
wequisition and meay include money nurkel instraments, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, LS, government
and agency obligations, or similar insiruments.

Resiricted cash amd eash equivalonts

Resiricied cash and cash equivalenis include customer collections on securitized reccivables io be disinbued io
invesiors as paviments on e relaied secured notes and koans pavable, which are prinarily related 1o seouritization
tmists, Resricied cash equivalens may also conain proceeds from certnin debi issunnces for which the use of the cash
15 restricied,

Favestments i mrarketable securities
Ivestments i marketable securities consist of debt secunitics and equity imvestments,

Diebt sccumties are designiied as available-for-sabe ("AFS™) and are recorded m fuir value with unrealized gains or
losses inchsded in accunmulated otler comprehensive income (“AQCIE™), net of applicable axes.

We adopied ASU 2016-13 on Aprl 1, 2020, on a modificd retrospective basis, as furiher described in Note | - Basis
of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies, Uinder the new puidance, once it is determingd o 3 credin loss
has occurmred, mn allowmnee fior credit losses is established. Prior o the adoption of this standard, when a decline in fair
value of o debl seourtly was determined 1o be other-han-temporary, an unparment charge for 1he credil componcin
was recorded in Invesiment and other income, nel and a new cost hasis in ithe investment was established. As of
March 31, 2021, management deermingd st credin losses did not exis for secunties in an wnrealized loss position.
Thas analysis considered a variety of fsctors inchuding, bt not limited to, performance indicators of the issuer, defiult
rates, industry amlyst eeponts, credin matings, and other relevant ifommation, which idicied ti comrsciual cash
flows are expected 1o occur.

All equity mvestments are reconded at fakr valise witl changes in fais value ingluded in lavestisent and oher ingome,
net in our Consolidated Statemends of Income. Renlized gains and losscs from sales of cquoty invesimenis arc
determimned wsing the firstin frst out mehod and arg included in Tnvestment and sahier income, nel within sur
Consolidated Statemenis of Income.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

in Adar ki

Investments m marketable secunties consisted ol the Tollowmg

March 31, 2021

Amortized  Unrealized  Unrcalized Fair
_cost  gains losses value
Avilable-for-sale deba securines:
LS, govenmment ad agency obligations 3 217 § 4 5 {lo) s 211
Mumicipal deln securities B 2 - o
Commercial paper 1596 - - (R3]
Corporate debi securities 177 12 (2 187
Mongage-backed scouritics:
S, governmend agency £l | - iz
Mon-agency residential 1 - - |
Non-ageicy commercial 47 2 {2} 47
Assel-backed secuntics B 3 - 52
Total available-for-sale debt securitics - ¥ & 4 8 (14} & Tih
Equily investnxnts 4,054
Total investments in murketable securitics 5 4,820

March 31, 20200

Amortired  Unrealised  Unrcalized Fair
gost  pains  losses wallue
Available-for-sale debl seourities:
L5, povermment and agency obligations 5 Ioll & In 3% - 8 176
Municipal debi sccuritics 9 2 - I
Cenificmes of deposit 50 . () 49
Commercial paper filkh = (3 sl
Corpomite debl secuntics 18K 10 (1) 197
Marigage-backed securities:
L5, governmeid agency A7 2 - 449
Mon-apency residential 1 - - 1
Mon-agency commercial 47 - () 45
Assel-backed securitics _ 15 _ . () 12
Total aviluble-for-sale debt scouritics -3 1,381 & 30 3 [y 5 1401
Equity invesiments _2Ale
Total imvestments in marketable secunties 5 Rl

A portion of our equity investments ane investmems in funds that are privaiely placed and managed by an open-cnd
investment manngement company (the “Trust"), 17 we ebeet 1o redeem shores, e Trust will normally redecm oll
shares for cash, but may, in unusual circumstances, redeem amounis excceding the lesser of 230 thousand or |
percent of the Trust's asset vahee by payiment in kind of securities held by (e respective Tund during any 9=cluy
period.

We aleo invest in actively traded open-cind mutual funds, Redemplions are subjec o nonmal tenns and conditions as
described in each fund’s prospectus.

Urreglized Losves on Securilics

Available-for-sale debt securitics in a contmmes boss position for less than rwelve months and greater than twelve
months were not significant as of March 31, 2021 and 2000,

R
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

i

Crerine enved Losses on Secnrifies

The following table represenis gains and losses onour investments in marketable securitics presented in our
Consolidated Sutemems of Income:

Years ended March 31,

. I I | i
Available-for-sale defd seourifies;
Realized gains (losscs) 5 5 9 5 (12)
Oiher-than-lemporiry nspairmeni £ %) &
Equity invesimenis:
Linreplized gains recognised 3 114 3 41 % 14
Realized gains on sales s 5 % 5 § .

Cantracine! Manurities

The wmwartized cost and Gir value by comractual maturities of available-for-sale debd securitics ane summarized in the
following able, Actual matwrities may differ from contractual maturitics because certain borrowers have the right to
call or prepay cerain obligaions.

Mareh 31, 2021

Amoriaed oosl Fuir value

Available-for-sale detd seourinies:

Duse within | year 1 232 8 232

Due afier 1 year through 5 years 133 139

D afier 5 vears through 10 years 153 L 56

Do afler 10 wears &0 7

Mergape-tacked and asser-backed securities ! ) s 132
Towl 5 726 5 Tih

1 Muongsge-hacked and nsel-hacked secumties are shovam Hl..jun'l.cl:.' roum odher muslurity BrUAAngs % These securviees hove
multiple ety daes.
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Mie 3 — Finan v 'n, N

Finanee recervables, nel consasts of retal baan and dealer products portfolio segments, amd mcludes deferred
origination costs, deferred income, and allowance for credit losses. Finpnoe reccivables, net also includes secwritized
retail receivables. which represent retail receivables thal have been sold for legal purposes (o securitization rsts bul
continue to be included in our consolidated financial statemems, 45 discussed fumber in Note § - Variable Inerest
Engitics. Cash Mows (rom these securitioed retail reccivables are available only for the repayinent of debt issucd by
these imisis and other obligaiions ansing from the sccuniisiion inmsactions, They are not available for paymeni of
our otler oblizations or to sutisfy cluims of our other creditors.

Finance receavables are classificd as held-for-investment i the Company has the indent and ability to hold the
receivables for the foresecable fubare or unti] matriy or payolf. As of March 31, 2021 and 2020, all nance
receivables were classificd ns held-for-investiment.

Revenues associnted wath retail and dealer Nnancing are recognized (o approximse a constant effective yield over the
comtmact term. Incremental direct fiees and costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of retail contracts and
dealer financing receivables, including incentive and rme participation payments made o dealers, are capitalized awd
amsortized to appreccinate a consiant effeciive yield over the term of the relaied comiracts. Payments received on
subvention and ether consumser incentives ane defermed and recopnized 1o approximate a constant eflective vield over
the term of the related contracis.

Upan adaption of ASU 2016-13, we elecied ihe nccounting policy 1o present acered iverest related io finance
receivables within Other assets i the Consolidaied Balance Sheets. As of March 31, 2021, sccroed interest relaied 1o
fikinee pecelvables 18 SIRT million and (s lncluded L Other assers, The coinparitive perlod's infofinalion coalinues 10
b reponied within Finance receivables, net.

Upen adogion of ASU 2006-13, we no leager reverse acerued imerest receivables foom smeres) mcome for our dealer
produsis porifolio when an account is deemed to be uncolleciible. For both retail loan and dealer producis porifolic
segmenis, accrued imerest, deferred income, and deferred ongination costs, iT any, are writlen of T within Provizion for
credit losses at the earlier of when an accoum is deemed 1o be uncollectible or when an account is greater than 120

days pist due

a4
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Finanee recenvables, nel consisted of the [llowing:

oOoOooodn

March 31, March 31,

=1 | R

Rl recenvables b 5 LRt ) S5T.08K
Dealer financing 13,642 17,873

R 53 74961

Delermed ongimiion cosls 1145 200
Deferred income [1,408) (1.128)

Albowance for credil bosses

Retail and secunitized retail receivables (1.075) (456
Dealer fmamging (103 (240
Total albowange for credil losses (1,178} (727}
Finunce receivables, net k3 TRITZ § 73,996

U Inchodes secaritized retail recenvaldes of $22.1 altion end $12.7 billson as of March 31, 2020 and 2020, nespectvely,

Contrnetisal msturities on retnil receivables and dealer financing are as follows:

Contrisciunl maturitics

Years ending March 31, Retail recervables  Dealer linancing

022 15797 § B155
23 15,321 1,727
024 13,510 GEd
025 100,260 SHE
026 7.551 T8
Thereafter 3852 1410
Tatal Ghl 4 I 3,042

A portion of our finance receivables has historically settled prior o contracizal maturity. Confractual maturitics

shown above should ned be considered indicative of Tuiure cash collections.

iy
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Credit Unality Indicators

We are exposed io credii risk on our finance receivables. Credii nisk is ihe risk of loss amsing from the failore of
custoaners of dealers o meet the tenns of their comracts willi us or otherwise Gul 1o perform as agreed.

Retail Loar Portfolto Seemear

The rerail loan porfolio scgment consists of one class of finance receivables. While we use various credit quality
micirics (o develop our atlowance for credii bosses on the retail loan ponifolio segment, we primarily wiiliae the aging of
the mdividual sccounts 1o monitor e credit quality of these lnunce receivables. Based on our experience, U
painienl stituis af borrowers is the strongest indicator of the eredit qisality of the underlving receivables. Paviment
status also impacts charge-ofls.

Individual borrower accounts within the retail loan pontiolio scgment are scgregaiod into aging calcgones based on ihe
muisiber of diys outstanding, The aging for each class of Giance recervables s updated monthly.

The fellowing table presents the amonized cost basis of our retail loan pertiolio by credit quality indicasor based on
mumber of days outstasding by origination vear al March 31, 2021;

Amortzred os Tlasis by Crypmstom Fecal Yer

b o | 00 7 24 snd Prisw Jostall

Agimg ol fimnoe recenables

Cuarenl 5 NN % L1 ST 1 [ B 1 AT O§ L E LIS 1 & § GE95

B0 37 dearw ik das 147 145 114 b3 a4 n L

#0080 days put e 17 L] ! | 1 ] ] 144

1 dapn s greaber pasi

das . B | __da ___1n — 3 . — 8 =
Tomsl 5 Ea 5 | [l 5 8127 3 i IEA 3 2497 3 237 3 6. 72K

The amortized cost of retail loan ponfolio excludes accrued insercst of 3160 mallion o March 51, 2021 The tble
includes contracts prealer than 120 days past due, which ang recarded a1 the Gur value of collalerml less estimated costs
1o sell, and comracts in bankrupicy,

The following abbe presents our retadl loan portfolio by crodit quality mdicator a1 March 31, 2020:

Aging of lnance receivables

Current ] 560064

30-59 davs past due 717

-89 daws past due 3

00 s or greater past due L4

Total g ST.088
n7
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Dl Proyets Porlfalio Segmend

The dealer proshicis porifolio segment consisis of three classes of finance receivables: wholesale, real estate and
working capital. Adl loans outstanding for an individual dealer or deaber group, which includes affiliated entings, are
agpregated and evaliumed collectively by dealer or dealer group, This reflects the intereonneeted nature of financing
provided 10 our individua] dealer and dealer group customers, and their afTilated entities.

When assessing the credit gualiny of the linmee receivables within the deaker prodascts pon folio segment, we scgregiie
the finmce receivables sccowil balances imo four categonies representing distingt eredit quality indicators based on
intemal risk assesaments, The itemal risk asscssments for all Nnance receivables within the dealer produgts ponfolio
semment are updated on o monthly basis,

The four credit quality indicators anc:
- Perfonming — Account not ¢lassified as cither Credin Watch, At Risk or Defauly;
- Credin Wtch = Account designated For clevined ancmion;

= AL Risk - Account where there 5 an mcreased likelihood that default may exist based on qualitative and
uantitanive factors; and

= Default = Account 15 nol curremly mecting conraciual obligatons or we have emporanily waved certn
contraciual requiremenls

The follawing table presents the amornized cost basis of our dealer products portfolio by eredit quality indicator based
on internal risk assessments by ongination vear at March 31, 2021;

e A O s i e ot Flngiad Yt

20kG and
w0 _ X9 0 8 007 0 Pew  Reehviglesss Towl
W holouale
Penfiammng L] ¥ . 1 ] - ¥ " L % LE LI | 8]
Crodi Wasch - - - - - - b 1] ZLR
A Bk - - - - - - % L]
Tarfanlk - - - . - . il 1]
Whelenal telal i - 5 - & - % - % e g el gE 613§ RIET
Heal etate
Pexiarmng 3 LEW 5 im 3 S0 ] LLL AN 3 HI % L. « X 4.951
Cradit Wasch L] 43 ] i a = - 1]
Al Rk ] . i LI . 4
Dt il " = AL 0 L e - i
Brall extar tetal L] PS5 wWwo§ e s A 1 L I 1 M § L % - % &
Workimg Capral
Pexfuinang - LU EXE I o § 4l + T 1 176 % i § Mg
Uredal Wasch i - - I - 1] L] L
ARl I o * - ¥ J L]
Dk L Qs — L R " 1 i o et
Wimking capiial wial ] Wy LTI e B 3 % % [T [ LT | e o
Toasl 5 lidl - § TH i My 5 ai| 3 LLL I | LE 5 T I T R

The amormized cost of the dealer producis porifolio excledes accrued interest of 527 million ar Margh 31, 2021, As of
March 11, 2021, ihe amount of ling-of-credii armangemenis thal are converied 1o term loans in each reporing period
was insiznificant.
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The following table presents our dealer products portfolo by creditl quality isdicator a1

March 31, 20240

Wholesale Real esiate ‘Working capital Tiodal
Credin qualiny indicators:
Performing 5 8750 8 1974 5 3z 3 15,856
Credit Watch 962 576 195 1,733
At Risk 92 55 €2 k]
Defail : . 23 L E __ 4%
Total 5 BRI 8 46218 8 3410 8 17,873

Past Due Finance Receivables by Class

Substantially all fmonce receivables do not invelve recourse 1o ihe dealer in the event of customer defiull. Finance
receivables mchuede contracts greater than 120 days pasi due, which are récorded al the fair value of collaterl less
eatimated cosis 10 sell, and contracts in bankmuptcy. Comracts for which vehicles have been repossessed are excluded.
For all finaice receivables, we defime “past due” a5 any paymiend, ineluding principal and interest, Uiat s at least 30
days past the contractal due date, Far any customer who is gmnied a payment exicnsion under an cxicnsion program,

the aging of the recervable 5 adjusted For the smber of davs of the extension pranted.

The following iabbe presens the aging of the amorized cost basis of our finance reccivables by class:

March 31, 2021

M) Dlays or
0.5 60X K Days or freler past
Drays Davs greater Todal Past Tolal Fimance  duoe and

pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  due  Cument  receivables  accruing
Retal loan 5 562 % 144 5 [ .3 TS % 65951 % 6y, T2R % LT
‘Whalesale - - - - 6,157 0,157 -
Real cstaie - - - - 5203 5,103
Warking capital £ z - R 2.281 3
Total 5 562 § 144 § o 5 775 § 70595 § R0LATD S LE]
Finance receivables cxchades scerucd imerest of 5187 million as of March 31, 2021,
The following {able presenis the aging of fMinance receivables by class:

March 31, 2020
90 Davs oF

30 - 59 Gl - &% 90 Days or grealer past

Days Days gredter  Toial Past Total Finance  due and

pastduc  pasiduc  pask duc de Cumrent  receivables  accruing
Retail loasn 3 N7 § 23 8 i 5 1024 S 56064 5 57048 S i
Whelesale . - - - B2 9826 .
Real estaie - - 1 1 4627 4628 -
Working capital - - - - 3419 3419 -
Toul s 77 8 203 & 105 % I.tES 7303 3 T4 8 i3]

R
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Trowhled Debi Restracturing

A troubled debi restruciunng occurs when o finance receavable is modificd through a concession o a bormower
experiencing financial difficulty. A finance receivable moclified under a ireubled debt restructunng is considercd 1o be
impaired. In pddition, roubled deb restructurings incliede finance receivables for which the customer has filed for
bankruptcy protection. For such finance receivables, we no longer have the abiliny 1o modify the terms of the
mgrecment without the approval of the bankrupiey count and the coun may imnpose tenm modifeations hal we are
obligated o pcoepl.

For accounts nol under bankmugicy protection, the amount of fnance reccivalbles modificd as a woubled det
restructuring during Aseal 2021 and 2020 was ned significant for coch class of lnasee receivables. Troubled debt
restructurings for accounts nof umder banknupicy protection within the retail loan class of finance receivables arc
comprized exclusively of contract term extensions that reduce the mombly payvisent due from the customer, For the
three classes of finance receivables within the dealer producis ponfolio segment, iroubled debi restruciurings include
COMTICT BRI eXMCnsions, imlerest rle adjustments, waivers of loan covenmms, of any combination of the (hree,
Troubled debi restructurings of accounts nol under bankrupicy protection did not include forgiveness of prncipal or
interest Fate adjustments dunng fseal 2021 md 2020,

Wi conssder linance receivables under bankrupscy protection within the retail loan class 1o be troubled debt
restructurings a5 of the due we receive notlce of a customer filing for kanknipicy proieciion, regardless of ithe ultimaie
ouicome of the bankrupicy proceedings. The banknipicy court may impose madifications as parl of the procecdings,
including nterest rate adjustiments and lofeiveness of principal. For fscal 2021 and 2020k, the Nnancial impact of
troubled debd resanciurings rebired to finance receivables under banknipicy proloction was ned significant fo our
Consolidated Stiemens of Income and Consolidied Baleee Sheets.

For a limied time duning fiscal 2021 we offcred several programs io provide reliel to customers during the COVID-19
pandemic, These programs, which were broadly available 1o our cusiomers, ingluded retail loan paymwent exlensions
und lease paymient defierrals. 'We concluded that these progmms did not meet troubled de restmucturing criterin due
1o the shon-lerm matere of the modilcations wills no chimge in the contractunl interest rate. To provide reliel for our
dealers we offered certain semporary inlerest reductions, interest payment defermals. and interest waivers on dealer
Neorplan Mnancing. and principal payment deferrals on dealer Noorplan financing, dealer real esiaie and working
capital loans. We also concluded that these programs did not meet troabled debt restructuring eriteria as the finance
receivables from ihe dealers were curreni.

Ky
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Upon adoption ol ASL 2006-13 an April |, 2020, the incurred loss imparment method was replaced with a new
impainment mosdel tha reflects lifetime expected losses. Management develops and documents the allowanee for
credit losses on finance receivables based on 1w portfolio sepments. The determimtion of portfolio sepments is
bascd primanily on the qualiaive consideration of the nare of our business operations and the chamcieristics of the
underiving finance receivables, as follows:

- Reiail Loan Porifolis Sepmeni — The reiail loan portfolio scpment consists of retail contracts acquined
from dealers inthe ULS. and Pueno Rico, Under a retadl contract, we ane granied a security interest in the
underlying colleral which consists primarily of Toyot, Lexus, and poivide label vehicles. Based on e
comanon risk characierisiics associaied with ihe inance receivables, the retail loan ponifolio segmeni is
considered a single class of finmce receivable.

- Peater Prodicts Pertfolio Segrrent — The dealer products ponfolio segment consists of wholesale
financing, waorking capital loans, revalving Hnes of credat wnd el estane loans 1o dealers in the LS, and
Pucrio Rico. Wholesale financimg is primarnily collaternlized by new or used vehicle imventory with the
oustanding balance fuctuating based on the level of invemory, Working capital loans and revelving lines
of credit are granted for working capital purposes and are secured by dealership assets. Feal este loans
are cellmeralizad by ilse smderlying real estate, are underwriiten primarily on o loan-1o-value basks and are
typically for a fixed term. Based on the nsk characteristics associaled with the underdying finance
recervables, the dealer products pontfolio segineil eondists of three classes of Mimnes receivables:
wholesale, working capital (incheding revelving lines of credit), and real esiate.

Masgemem s csnmate of lifetome expected credin losses 18 based on an evaluation of relevant informnon abon past
events, current conditions, and reasoqable and supporiable forecasts that alfect the future collectability of the fuiance
receivables. Management's cvaluation takes into considerstion the risks in the retail loan pontfolio and dealer products
porifolio, past loss experience. delinquency trends, underwriting and collection praciices, changes i porifolie
conngsesitien, eosmonic forecasts and other relevian Gictons,

Prior o Apanl [, 2020, and the adoption of ASU 2006-13, allowance for credit losses were reported under the incurmed
loss imipairment method, Comparptive penod’s information continues 1o be reported under (he relevant accoumting
gurdince m effect for that poriod i accordance with accounting policies described i Mote 5 - Allewance for Credit
Laosses in our fiscal 2020 Form 10-K.

Methodolegy Used to Develop the Allowance for Creaii Losses

The allowance for credit losses is measured on a collective basis when loans have similar risk characierisiics. Loans
that do not share similar risk characteristics are evahwted on an individual basis, We gencrally use a discounted cash
Moo approach for determining allowance for credit losses for finance receivables modified as a troubled debt

restruciunng that are granted with imerest mte concessaons, and o mon-discounted cash Now approach for other loans.

Wi measure expecied losses of all componenis of finance receivables on an amaoriived cost hasis, excluding acenied
imterest, and (ncheding off-halance-<hees lending commitmenis that are nod uneonditional ly cancellable by TMOC.
Estimated expected credit bosscs for ofl-balance-sheet leneding commitments within our dealer products portfolio are
inelided in Oiher Habilities in e Consolidated Balance Shees. We have elecied 1o exclude accrued linerest froen (e
mcasurcment of expocted credit losscs as we apply policics and procedures this result in the imecly write-offs of
secrued ierest.

41
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Reta! Loan Partfolie Sepment

The levek of credit risk in our retail lean portfolio scgment is nfluenced by various factors such as cconomic
condinons, the used vehicle markel, eredit qualily, contract struciure, and collectien strvegies and practices. The
allowance for credii losses is measured on a collective basis when loans have similar nsk characieristics such as loan-
to-valug riteo, book payment-to-income ratie, FICO £¢ore ol ongimation, collateral type, contipel 1enm, and ather
relevant factors. 'We use statistical models to cstimate liferime expected credit losses of our retail loan ponfolio
sepment by applying probability of defuult and loss given default (o the exposure i delault on a loan level basis,

Probability of defauli models are developed from iviernal nisk scoring models which consider variables such as
delmauensy status, historcal defimd fredquency, amd other credin quality imdicators such as loan=ta=value ratio, book
pavment-to-income ratio, FICC score ot origination, coltateral tvpe (new or used, Lexus, Tovota, or private label), and
COMRIC] .

Loss given defanh models forecast the cxiem of losses given that a defoult has occurred and considers variables such
as collmeral. ireids in recoveries, lilstorical loss severty, and oller conlrac dmciane vorbles. Exposune ol defaull
represcnts the cxpecied outstanding princigal balance, incliding the effecis of expecied prepayment wlen applicabde.

The Nfctime ¢xpected eredil losses incorporate the probabilitv-weighted forvard-looking imacresconomic fonecasts fof
basclime, favarable, and adverse scenarios. The loan lifctime is regarded by management as the reasonable and
supporiable period. W nse macroeconomic forecasts fnoan i Urind party and updite such foreeasts quarnery.

O an ongoing basis, we review our madels, including macrocconnmic faciors, the selection of macrocconomic
seemarios and teear weighting w ensure ey reflect the risk of te portfolio.

I management docs not belicve the models rellect lifctime expecied credit losses, a qualitive adjustment is made 1o
reflect management jedginent regarding observable chimges in receni o expecied economie irends and conditions,
porifolio composition, aed other rekevant factors. 'While management uscs the best infornation available to make such
evaluations, Riture sdiustinents 10 the allowance for credit losses may be recessary il conditions differ substantially
from the assumptions wsed in making the cvaluntons.

Desalier Proctuets Perifolio Segnent

Thez level of credit risk in our dealer producis portfolio segment is influenced primarily by the financial strengih of
dealers within our poniolie, dealer concentration, collaterz] quality, and eiher economic frctors. The Mnancial
strength of dealers within our portfolio is influcnced by, among other factors, pener] cconomic conditions, the overall
demand for new and used vehicles and the financial condition of muomotive manulicirers, The allowance for credii
losses is established for both outstanding dealer finance recervables and cortam unfunded off-balance sheet lending
commiments, The allowance Tor credin losses 5 measured on a callective basis when loans have similar risk
characteristics such as dealer proup interial risk rning and loan-to=value rbes. W measure lifctime expected credit
losses of par dealer products portfiolio segment by applving probability of deful and loss given defaul 1o the
exposure it detianlt on a loan level basis. Probability of detinln is primarily esiablished based on inernal nsk
assessments. The probability of defimli model also conskders qualitative fclors relaicd o macroeconomic

outlooks. Loss given defili is established based on the natre and market value of ihe collateral, loan-to-value ratkos
and cdbier credit quality indicasors. Exposure a1 defaull represents the expected owtstanding principal balance., The
Iafetime of the lomi or bending commatment 15 regarded by managament as the reascnable and supportable period. On
n nﬁging basis, we review our models, including macrocconomic guilooks, vo cnsure they reflect the risk of the
parifiolio.

I mansigement does not belicve the moedels reflect lifetime expecied credii losses, a qualittive adjustment is made io
reflect management judpment regarding observable chimwes in recent or expecled cconomis trends and conditions.
portfolio composition, and other rebevant fetors. Whils managemen uses the best information available 1o make such
evaluations, future adjustments 1o the allowance for credil losses may be neoessary il conditions differ substantially
from the assumptions used in making the evahaations,
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The following iables provide information related to our allowance for credit losses for finance receivables and centiin
o F-balance sheet lending commitmens by pontfalio seament:

: Year ended March 31, 2021

_Retail loan Dealer products ol
Begnuing balance, Apnl 1, 2020 § 486 5 Ml s 727
Achoption of ASL 2006131 211 1 92
Charge-oils (287} - (287)
Recoverics 48 9 5
Provision for ¢redin losses 547 (121 426
Enduisg balance, March 31, 2021 ¢ 5 1075 % 14 % 1215

U Camulstive pre-tax sdjustments neconded 1o retained camings as of Apnil 1, 2020, See MNote | - Basis of Presemation amd
Sugaificant Accounting Polscies B addinenal information

¥ Ending balance mcludes 37 million of allowance for credit losses related (o ofT-balance sheet commalments m the dealer
produces postfislio whech is focluded in Onber labalides in the Comsolidated Balamce Sheet,

Finance recenvables for the dealer products portfolio scgment as of March 31, 2021 includes 51,025 million m finmce
receivables ihat are guaranteed by Toyola Motor Norh America, Inc. (STMNA"), and $162 million in finance
receivahlies thar are guaranteed by thid-party privaie Toyoin disiriimors. These finance receivables ane relaied o
cerlain Toyota and Lexus dealers and other third parties to whom we provided financog ol the request of TMNA and
third-pamy private Toyota disinibuiors.,

Dririmg fiscal 2021, the allowmce for credit losses increased S488 million, reflecting an increase 1o the allowance for
credit losses of $202 nullion relvied to the sdoption of ASU 2006-13 i fiscal 2021, and un incrense of 5196 million
primarily due to an increase in the size of the porifolio and the increase in expecied credii losses for the retail loan
portfolio driven by economic conditions cassed by e COVID- 19 pandemic and the restnctions designed to slow (he
spread of COVID-19, incheding stay-at-lome orders, incressed uneniployment, and deercased consumer spending. In
addition fo the initial adoption impact, ASL 200613 has led to an imerease in the pronasion of credit losses wath the
arowth of our retail loan porifolio as this siandard replaces the incurred loss inpairment model with a mode] that
reflects expected credin losses over the expecied e of the finance recebvables and cenain off-balance sheet lending
comumitment. The additional amount of provision Tor credit losses on our retadl portfolio were pantially offsct by lower
provision for eredil losses onoour dealer pentfollo as a result of improved dealer financial performance.

_Year ended Minch 31, 2020 !

Allerwance for Credit Losses for Finance Receivables: Remilloan Deaber products Toml
Begimming balence, Apnl 1, 2019 5 s 195 s L L
Charge-offs {358 (1) (3703
Becoverics. 50 - 50
Provision for credil losses 4K 58 548
Ending balance, March 31, 2020 13 486 § 4l 5 727

! The comparative peruod's mfonmalicn contines 1 be reporied under the relevant nceounting presentation i effect fior that
peeriodl.

France recemvables for the dealer products portfolio segment as of March 31, 20200 includes 51,047 million i finmmce

receivables that are guaraniced by TMNA, and S 140 maltion in finance receivables that are puaranteed by third-pany

privale Toyela disinbulors, These finance receivables are related 1o certnin Toyoda and Lexis deabers and ather third
partics (0 whom we provided financing at the requcst of TMNA and third-parny privare Toyola disiributors,

o
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MMy 5~ Iy i i Ng

Investments i operating leases, nel consists of veliucle lease contracts acquired from dealers, and imchedes deferred
origination fees md costs, deferred mcome, and scowmalmed depreciation, Generally, lessees hive the abiliny to
extend their lease tenm in six month increments up o a total of 12 months from the onginal lease maturity dase. A
lease can be erminated at any time by satisfving the obligations under the lease coniract. Early tenmination programs
may be occasionally effered 1o cligible lessocs. Al the end of the lease, the customer has the option 10 buy the leased
vehicle or retum e vehicle o the desler,

Secuntized invesiments in operating leases represent beneficial mlerests in a pool of certiin vehicle leases that have
been sold for legal purposcs to sccunitization rusts bul continue 10 be included in our consolidaed linancial suements
s discussed furibier in Note & - Variable Interest Enidibes. Cash flows from these scourtized Investmems in operating
leases are available only for the repayment of debl issued by these tnusts and other obligations arising from the
securitization imnsactions. They are nol avallable For paviment of ous otlier obligations of to saisly ¢lmms af our other
croditors.

Operting lease revenues are recognueed on o sirght-lbse basis aver the weem of the lease. We have made an
accounting pelicy election to exclude from the consideration in ihe contract, and from varable paymenis noi mcluded
i e considerniion in the contragl, sales and other taxes assessed by a governmental authority that are ol impased
on and concurrent with a specific lease revenue-producog transaction and collected from customers. Deferred fiecs
il ©os1s i hede incentive pyments made 10 dealers aind acaquisation fees collected from oustomers, Deferred incomne
includes payments received on affilime sponsored subvemion and other incentive programs, Both defermed foes and
costs and deferred Income are capiialbeed or deferred and amonized on a stralgli-line basls over the contract e,
Thee wccrun] of revenue on investments in operating leases is discontimacd i the time an account is determined (o be
uncolleciible and subsequent revenue is recognized only o the exient i pavmen is received. Operating keases may be
restored bo acorual status when future payments are reasonably assured.

Vehvicle Lease Residwal Vilues

Contractual residinal vahses of vehiche lease contracts ane estimated at lease inception by examining extemal indusiry
data, the anticipaied Tovotn, Lexus, and private label product pipcline and our own experience. . Factors considered in
this evaluntion include macrosconomie forecasts, new vehicle pricing, new vehicle incentive programs. new vehicle
sales, wehicle feares mmd specifications, the mix and level of wsed vehicle supply, the level of current used vehicle
vilues, and fuel praces, We are cxposed 100 nisk of loss to the extent e customer refurns the vehicle and dee value of
the vehicle is lower than the residual value estimated at inception of the lease or if the mumber of reurmed vehicles is
higher than anticipated,

Depreciution on operating beases is recognized using the stmight-line method over the lease term. The depreciuble
basis. is the original acquisition cost of the vehicle fess the estimated residial value of the vehicle a the end of the
fease werm. O oa quarterly basis, we review the estimated end=of=1erm market values and retum rales of leased
vehicles io assess the approprisiencss of the camying values o lease-cnad. Faciors affecting the estimaied end-of-ierm
mirket valee are stmikar 1o (s considered o e evaluation of residual vahses at lease inception discussed wbove.
Adijustments (o depreciaion expense W rellect revised estinetes of expecied marked valises s lease werminition and
revised retam rates are rocorded prospectively on a straigha-line basis over the resmiining lease term.

We use vanious channels o sell vehicles rewrmed at leasc-end. Upon disposition, the differcnce berween 1he net book
vilue of the lease and the proceeds received from the disposition of the assel, including anv msurance procesds is
recorded as an adjustment 1o depreciation on operating leases,

We evaluate our investment i operatmg lewses portfolio for potentim] mpainment when we delemmine o riggering
eveni has occurred. When g iniggering cveni has occurred, we perform a iesi of recoverability by comparing ihe
expecied undiscounted futare cash Mows (mclhading expected residual values) over e remaining lease terms 1o the
carrving value of the assct group, IMhe test of recoverability identifies a possible impaimment, the asset group’s fair
vialug 18 measured i accordance with the far value measurement framework. An impannent charge would be
recognized for the amonum by which the camying value of the asset group excecds its estimated fair valee and would be
recorded In our Conseliduned Staements of Income. As of March 31, 2021 and 2020, there was no impairment inoour
investiment in operating leases porifolio.
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I conjunction with the adoptson of ASU 2006-13 on Apal |, 2000, we updated our deprecistion palicy (or aperalmg
leases so that the useful life of the vehicles incorparates our historical experienee an early terminations due 1o
customer defiulis. Ag aresult, we changed the presentation for reporting early fermination expenses retated o
customer defauhs on investments in operating beases. Previously, we presented the carly enmination expenses resenve
on operating leases as part of the allowance for credit losses which reduced Investments in operating leases, net in the
Consolidaied Balance Sheeis, and as pari of Provision for credit losses in ihe Consolidated Stnements of Income, 'We
now consider the effects of operating fease carly tlenminations when detenmining deprecintion estimales, which are
included &5 pan of accumilited depreciation within Invesimems i operating leases, net in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and Depreciation on operting leases i the Consolidated Statemens of [ncome, As of April 1, 2020, (s
change in presemation increased secumulated depreciation and decreased allowanee for credit losses by 90 million.
The comparative persod's inforniation cominnes o be reported under the relevant accounting presentation in efTect for
tht period.

Investments in operating leases, nel consisted of the following

March 31, March 31,
021 2020
Invesimens in operating leases ! 5 48,337 % 48,638
Deferred origination (fees) and costs, nel (o (223)
Dielerred income (1,759 11,962
Accumulated depreciation [ 3EG) (9976)
Altowanee for credil losses - _ {90)
Investments in operating leases, net 5 3T 8 30387

U Inchedes seouninsed dnvestmens in operating leases of 39,3 billion and 579 billion as of Masch 31, 2021 wsld Mach
1, 2020, respectively.

Future miinimum rentals on investments in operating leases are a5 follows:;

Future mimimum

Years ending March 310, _ rentils on operating leases

022 3 5065
023 R
3024 305
2028 LM
2026 7
Thereafter =
Tatal i 11,3849

A portion of our operaning lcase contricts has histoncally termmated pror o mutunty. Foture mimimuam rentals shown
wbove should nol be considered indicative of fslure cash collections.

98
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Darivative lnstrumenis

Chir liabilities consisi mainly of fixed and variable raie debi, denominated in LS. dollars and various other currencics,
which we issue in the global capaial markets, while our assets consis) primanly of LS. dodlir denominated, fixed rawe
receivables. We cruer into interest rate swaps, and foreign currency swaps to cconamically hedge the imterest re and
foreign currency risks thin result from the different characteristics of our assets and lnbilines. Our use of derivative
iransiclions is imtensded (o redsce bong-tenm Nuctustions in e Gur vilue of assets and Habilites caused by markel
movemenls. All of our derivative activities are authorized and monitored by our management and our Asset-Liability
Conanittee which provides a framework for fnancial controls and gevernance (o manage markel risk.

We categorize derivatives as those designated for hedpe accounting (“hedge scememing derivinives™) and thosg thi
wre not designated for hedge sccounting {“non-hedge accounting denvatives™ ). Ad the inception of a denivative
conract, we may elect 1o designate o derivative as a hedge sccounting derivative if cerain criteria are met, We hd no
hedpe accounting derivativies as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

All deriviive mstruments are recorded on the balance sheet at G valug, tiking imo conssderation the effects of
legally enforceable masier netiing agreements thal allow us to net settle asset and liability positions and offset cash
collateral with the some counlerpany on a net basis. Changes in the fir value of our dervative instruments are
recorded in Interest expense in our Consolidated Statemenis of Income. The denvative imstruments are included as a
companent of Ciher asseis or Ckber labilities i our Consolidmed Balance Sheeis

(Nfsetting of Derivatives

Accouniing guidance permils the nel presentation on our Consolidated Balance Sheets of derivative reccivables and
derivative pavables with the sume coumierparty and the related cash collateral when a legally enforeeable masier
nglting agrecmen exists, When we meet this condition, we elect 1o present such bilarces oo a ngt basis,

Chur Intermintional Swaps and Derivitives Association Masier Agrecmenis are our master neiting agreemems which
perinil mrlliple wansactiong 1o be cancelled and senled with o single net balance paid o either pany, The masiere
neiting agrecmenis also contain reciprocal collateral agreements which require the imansfer of cash collateral 1a the
party i g nel asset position aeross all ronssctions, Cur collmeral agreemems with substantially all our counterpartics
include @ wero threshold, full collateralization arangement. Ahhough we have daily valustion and collateral exchange
armngemenis with all of our counterpartics, due 1o te time requined 10 move collateral, there may be a delay of up 10
one day between the exchange of collateral and the valuation of our denvatives. We would net be required 1o post
addinional codlateral 10 the counterpartics with wharm we were in a net labality position an March 31, 2021, i our credin
ratings were Lo declioie, sivce we fully collateralize without regard to credit ratings with these counterpartics. In
addition, a3 our coltateral agreements include legal right of offset provisions, collmeral amounts are neticd againg
derivative assets or dervanive labilities, e et anson of which is inctuded in Other assers or Other labalities in our
Consolidated Balance Sheeis.

i
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Derivative Activity Impact on Consolidoted Finameial Xtotowemis

The following iahles show the financial statement line item and amount of oar denvative asseis wnd liabiliiics that are
reported in our Consolidaled Balance Sheets:

March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Fair Fair
_Motional  walue  Metional  value

Other assets:
Intetest mke swips 5 44,1258 % 1ok 8 Wan? 8 14
Foreagn currency swaps B -1 .. S .| . | . 27

Total H 51399 & 1,356 & Jg50 8 1437
Counterparty neiting (B4 (i )
Collateral held {402 (4200

Carrying valee of derivative coniracts — Orher assats 5 34 s 51
Other linbilities:
Inkcrest mic swips 5 55062 S 1142 & G073 8 1826
Forcign cumeney swips 4,321 243 13,181 1,200

Tustal § 893Ky 5 1385 & 822060 % EN ALY
Comiiilerparty neming {8400 {966
Collaeral posied e (544) (2.005)

Carrying value of derivative contracts — Oiher

litilities 5 I 5 4%

As of March 31, 2021 and 200, we held excess collweral of 829 million and 510 million, respeclively, which we did
0o wsg 10 offsel devivative assets and was recorded in Other labilines in our Consolidned Balonge Sheets, As of
March 31, 2021 and 2020, we posted excess collascral of 8 10 million and %1 million, respectively, which we did not
use 10 affsel denvitive abilines and was recorded 1 Cibier assets i our Consolidated Balinee Sheets,

a7
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The following table summarizes e components of mierest expense, including the location and amoont of gains and
losses on derivative instimemts snd related hedged iems, as reporied in our Consalidsted Statements of [ncome:

Nears Ended March 31,

2021 200 2019
Interest expense on debi 5 1954 % 2488 3 2559
Interest expense (income) on dervatives 420 10 5%
Interest expense on debt and derivatives 2374 256K 2,506
Losses (gana)om debi denominated in
loreign currencics 1,402 1703 [1,0TE]
(Gains ) losses on foreign cumency swips {1.351) 50 Lals
{Gains) losses on LS. dallar interest rate swaps (123} 24 i
Total inlercst expense 8 202 8 281 5 2,747

Tterest expense on debi and dervatives represents net interest seitlements and changes m ncemeals. Civns and losses
ol derivatives and dei denominated in foreign curmencies exchde nen inienest seillements and changes in accnials
Cash Mows associated with derivalives are repoiied i Net cash proviaded by operating activities i our Consolidated
Statcments of Cash Flows.

205/326



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

MNue T = i iliti

Diebt and the related weighied avernge commeiual mlerest rales are sunmmanzed as [ollows:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 20240
Weighted Weighied
mCTage averuge
Face Carrying  contractual Face Carrving  conraciual
vl wvalue interest rafes value wallue mierest ries
Unsecured notes and loans payable 5 85759 5 85513 1.30% § R3477 5 H3AT2 207%
Secured notes and Joans payable _Mxse 202 1.29% 14,597 14,568 213%
Tatal debt 5110015 5109725 1.30% S 98074 8 97740 2%

The carrying value of our dett includes unamortized promiums, discounts, debt issuance costs ind the effcets of
foreign currency trumslation adjustments. Debl isswance costs ane deferred and amortized 10 inlerest expense on
eifective yicld basis over the contractual ierm of the debi.

Weighted average contraciual mterest rates are calculitesd based on ongimal notional or par value before consideration
of preminm of discount and approximile the effective interest eates.

Dbt 15 callable at par value. Scheduled mturities of our debl porifolio are sunmianzed below, Actual repavinient of
secured debt will vary based on the repayment activity on the related pledged asscis.

Fulure

¥ears ending March 310, debl maturitics
022 5 52,106
2023 23,564
2024 1116
2025 0,245
il 9,327
Thereafier ! 15717
Unamortized presniums, discounts and debi issuance costs {200)
Toual debt 5 1K}, 725

! Unsecured and secured noies and loans pavable maanare cn varous dates thoough fiscal 2049,

Unsecured Nodes and Loans Payable

Our unsecured nodcs and loans payable consist of commercial paper and fixed and vanable rate debt. Short-term
Tunding needs are met through the issuance of commercial paper inihe LS. Amounis outstanding under our
comanercial paper progrums were $17.0 billion and 5270 billion as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Upom issyance of Mxed male debt, we generally clect to cnter imo pay-llost seaps o convert fixed rate pavimenis o
debt 1o Nleating rae paymients, Centain unsecured notes and leans payable are denominated in various foreign
currencics. The dei is iranslaed invo U5, doliars using the applicable exchange rvie a1 the ransaction dae and
retrmislated al each balance sheet date using the exchange rate in effect it that date. Concurrenl with the isuance of
these foreign currency unsccured notes and loans payable, we cnter into currency swaps in (he same nodionnl amount
to eonvert non-ULS. curmency puyments to LS. dollor denominied payments. Gains and losses related to foreign
currency transactiens are included in Interest expense in our Consolidated Satemems of [ncome.

Certam of our unseeured notes and loans payable contiun covenants and conditions customary in transastions of thas
nature, including negative pledge provisions, cross-definult provisions and limitations on ceriain consolidations,
mergers and sales of assets, We are curmently in complinnsee with these coveninis and conditions.
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MNue T = it Faciliti anli

Seenred Netes and Loans Payable

Chir secured nodes and loans payable are denominated in LS. dollars and consist of both fixed and vaniable raic debi.
Secured notes and loans payable are issued using on-balance sheat securitizalion trusis, as frtler discussed in Note 8
— Variahle Imterest Entities, These notes are repayable only from collections on the underlying sccuritized retail
finance receivables and the beneficial interests m investments in operating beases and from relased credit
enlameements. Somw of eur secured notes are backed by a revolving pool of fnee reccivalbles and cash collsersl,
with the ability 10 repay the notes in full after e revelving period ends, aller which an amartization period begins.

Credfit Facilities amd Letters af Cradit
For additional lhguidity purposes. we maintan credi cailities o5 deseribed below:

A Day Credif Agreement, Theee Year Credii Agreement and Five Year Credll Agreewent

In Movember 2020, TMCC, Toyoto Credin de Puento Rice Corp. (“TCPR™), 0 wholly-owned subsidiary, and other
Toyotw affiliates re-cntered into & $5.0 billion 364 day syndicated bank credil facility expining in fiscal 2022, In
Movember 2009, TMOC, TCPR and oiler Tovola allilines re-cmered o a 55,0 billion tlree vear syidicated bank
credit facility and a 550 billion five year symdicated bank credst focility, expirmg in fscal 2023 and 2025,
respectively,

The ability 1o make draws 15 subject to covenanls and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, including
negative pledge provisions, cross delmli provisions and lmitations on ceriain consalidaiions, mergers and sales of
assets, These agreements may be used for peneral comporie purposes and none were drswn upon as of March 31,
2021 and 20240, We are currently i complionce with (he covenants and conditions of the credit agrecmeints described
above,

Coamisnitted Rnw.ﬁ'l'.rlj; Asterdacked .Flr:'f.l'.i{'l'

In July 2020, we entered into a 364 day revolving securitization facility with certain bank-sponsored asset-backed
congduits and other lrancial mstnnons, Under the o and subject 1o the conditions of 1his Bicility, e commirted
lenders under the [cility have committed to make advances wp to a facility lemit of 56.5 billion backed by eligable
retail finance receivables ransferned by us 10 a special-mumose entity acling as borrower. This revabving facality
allows us 1o ohdain term fonding and, with the consemt of the committed lenders, may be renewed on an annual basis.
Any utilized portion of the Facility thit is not rencwed is repaid as e wnderlving asscis wmprtize. As of Manch 31,
2021, 532 ballion of as Gcility was utilieed. We may oblin additionl funding as we pay down the outstading delbd
in conjunction with the amonizaton of ransferred receivables, subject 1o having a sulficiem amount of eligible
receivables. Our utilization and rencwal stratcgics are driven by cconomic conskderations as well as our funding and
Tiquidiny neods,

Oflrer Unsecured Credit Agreemenis

TMCC has entered inio additional unsecured eredin fcilities with various banks, As of Mareh 31, 2021, TMCC had
commitied bank credit facilities toaling $4.4 billion, of which 52.3 Wllion, 51.8 billion, and 5300 million mature in
Tiscal 2022, 2023, apd 2024, respeciively.

These credi agreaments contain covendants and condilions customary in trnsactions of this nature, mcluding negative
plodpe provisions, cross-default provisions and limitmions on certain consolidations, mergers and sales ol assets
These credi facilines were nol drawn upon as af March 31, 2021 and 2020, We are curmenily in compliance with the
covenanis and conditions of the credit agreements described above.

TMOC is party 10 2 55.0 billion thrée vear revolving credit facility with Toveda Motor Sales, US AL, e, (“TMS™)
This credit facilivy was drown upon in fiscal 2020 for a principal amount of 53,0 billion with an interest mue off 1,86%,
wd o July 30, 2020, we volumtarily repaid (e diraw and scoreed interestin full. The amount was recarded in Ciher
liabilities on our Consolidaied Balance Sheel and funds were used lor gencral corporaie purposes. In April 2021, as
the existing credat facility was se1 (o expire, TMOC re-cotored mio o S50 billion three vear revedving crodil ficility
with TMS expiring in fiscal 2025

[ILT]
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From time (o time, we may boerrow from affiliaies based upon o number of business faciors such as funds avmlability,
cash Mow timing, relative cost of fuids, and market access capabilitics. Amwouiins borrowed from afiliates are
recorded in Other lnbalities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

[}
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Mirle B~V 1}

A WIE 15 2 entity that either (1) has msufTicient equity 1o permit the entity 1o fmanes 165 activities witloul additional
subordinaled financial support or (i) has equity investors who lack the characienistics of 4 controdling financial
interest. The primury beneficiary of a VIE is the party with both the power 1o direct the activities of e VIE fiat most
significamly impact the W1E's economic performance and the obligamion 1o absorb the losses or the right 1o receive
benefits thin could potentially be significant 1o the VIE.

To assess whether we lave e power 1o direct (he aciivities ol a VIE dun most significamily Bnpact its econgmic
performance, we consider all e facts and cirownstances mcluding our role in esiablishing the VIE and our ongoing
rights and responsibilitics, This assessment inclsdes idemti fying the activities that most significantly impact the VIE's
ceonomic performanee and identifving which pariy, I any, has power over those activities. In general. the pary that
makes the most significant decisions affecting the VIE is determined to have the power o direct the activities of the
VIE. To assess whetlier we hive the abligation 1o abiarb the losses of the rght 16 feceive benelits thit eould
potcntially be significant to the VIE, we consider all of our economic imerests, including debi and equity inferests,
servicing rights and Fee arrangenents, s sy other variable imerests in e VIE. 15 we determing thl we are e
party with the power to muke the mest significant decisions affecting the VIE, and we have an obligation to absorb the
losses or the nght 1o receive benelits that coald potentinlly be significant 1o the VIE, then we consolidate the VIE

We perform ongoing rexssessments, wswally quarterly, of whether we ane the primary beneficiary of a VIE. The
remsessnen proeess considers whether we lave acquired or divested the power to direer the mast sigmificant activities
of the VIE through changes in goveming documents or ather circumstances, We also reconsider whether citities
previously determined not 10 be VI1Es have become VIEs, based on new evenis, and therefore could be subject 1o the
VIE consolidation framework,

Conselidluted Vuriuble Interest Entities

We use one or more specia] purpose entities that are considered VIEs (o issue assei-backed securities io third-party
bank-sponsored assci-backed securinzation vehicles and o invesions i secunitizanon irnsachions, The seourilics
issued by these VIEs are backed by the cash flows related to retail finanee receivables and beneficial interests in
investmenms in openating keases (“Securitized Assets™). We hodd vanable interests in the VIES thit could poteniially be
significam to the VI1Es. We determined that we are the primary beneficiory of the securitizaiion tnests becawse (i) our
servicing responsibilities for ihe Securitized Asseis give us the power io direet the activities that most significanily
imipact the performance of the VIEs, and (§i) our variable inderests i the VIEs give us the obligation 10 absorb losses
and the right o receive residual returns thai could poieniially be significant,

The following fables show the assets and labilities relited 1o our VIE secunitization transaciions that were mcluded i
our Consolidsted Balance Sheets:

VIE Asscis VIE Liatalitics
Mel
Resaricred securinaed Onhgr Oiher
cash 5L nssels Dickn liakilitics
Reeal finance receivables 5 1521 % 21,745 3 an 5 19665 % 13
Investmems in operaing leases 436 6,599 43 4547 1
Tonal 5 1,957 § 28,34 5 B 5 MM 5 14
VIE Liabilitics
et
Restricted securitloed Onler
Retail fnance receivahles L3 o 8 12375 § 5 5 10,933
Investiments i operating leases Hii2 5 580 126 165
Taotal 5 Wy % 17061 8§ 131 s 14,568

[
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Restricied cash, imcluding cash cquivalems, shown in (he previous table represents collections from the underlying Net
securitized assets shown in the previous table and cortum reserve deposits hebd by TMOC [or the VIEs and 15 included
as par of Resiricied cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balinee Sheets. Met secunitized asseis shown in
the previous table are presented net of deferred fees and costs. defemed income, sccumulated depreciation, and
allowance for credin losses, Oaher assets represcnl used velicles held-for-sale e were repossessed by or setumed w
TMCC for the benefit of the VIEs. The related debt of these conselidated VIES is presented net of 51,409 million and
S1IE2 mullion of securitees retained by TMOC an March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, Other liabaliigs represent
wccracd imerest on the deba of the consolidned V1Es,

In conjunction with the adopiion of ASU 2006-13, we hive changed the presentation of socrsed interest relmed o
{inanice receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheats from Finance receivables, nel to Other assets, Az a resule,
(hher asscts as of March 31, 2021 include accrued interest related to securitized retail finance receivables. The
comparative perod’s informalion conlinues to be reporied uinder the felevant accounting presentation i ¢flect foe it
period.

The wssets of the VIEs and e Resinicied cash and cash equivalenis beld by TMOC serve as the sobe source of
repaymend for the assei-backed securitics issued by these entities. Inveslors in the notes issued by the VIEs do not
have recourse o us or our olber assets, with e exceplion of customary representation and warranly repurcliase
prowvisions and indemmnitics.

As the primary beneficiry of these enlities, we are exposed fo credit, residual value, mierest rie, and prepayment rsk
from the Securitized Assets in the VIEs. However, our exposure to these risks did not change as a result of the transfer
of the assets 10 Use VIEs. We may ilso be exposed 10 tenest rane risk arising lrom the seouned notes issued by ihe
VIEs,

T adedinion, we cantercd nno oienest rie swaps with cenlain specil purpose eniites that issue virable mie deb.

Under the terms of these swaps, the special purpose entities are obligated 1o pay TMCC a fixed rate of intercst on
certain payment dates m exchange for receaving a Noaing rate of inerest on nedonal amounts equal 1o he oustanding
balance of the secured debt. This armngement enables the specinl purpose entilies to mitigate the interest mte nisk
inherent in Bsuing variable rate debt thal is secured by fined re Securitized Assols,

The tranzsfers of the Sccuntized Assels o the special purpose emitics in our sccuritizations are considered 1o be sales
for legal purposes. However, the Securitized Asses and the relmed debl remain on our Consolidated Balanee Sheets.
We recognize financing revenue on the Securitized Assets and inferest expense on the secured debi isswed by the
special purpose entitics, We also nnintain an allowance for eredit losses on the securitized retal linance receivables
using a methodology consistent with that used for our non-secuntized asset porifolio. The micrest rale swaps between
TMOC and the special purpose entities are considered intercompany transactions and there fore ane eliminated in our
consalidated Minancial statements.

Nen-consolidated Varloble Fnterest Eniifies

We provide lending to Toyola and Lexus dealers trough the Tovoea Dealer Investment Group®s Dealer Caplial
Program (*TDIG Progeam’™) operated by our aililiate TMMNA, which has an couity interest in ihese dealerships,
Dealers participating in this progrom have been detenmined 1o be VIEs. We do not consolidaie the dealesships in this
program as we are nol (he primary beneficiary and any cxposure 10 1oss is limited 1o the amount of the credin feciliny.
Amnounis due from these dealers under the TDIG Program that are classified as Finance receivables, net in our
Consolidated Balance Sheeis an March 31, 2021 and 2020 and revenucs camed from these dealers duning fiscal 2021,
2020 and 2019 were not significant.

We alzo have other lending relationships which have been defermined o be VIEs, b these relationships are not
consalidated as we are not the prmary beneficiary. Amownis due and revenses carned wder these relationships as of
March 31, 2021 and 2020 were not significant.

({153
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Mt ) — 5 i g
Conrmifpents and Guaraniees

We have eniered into cerinin commiiments and guaraniees for which the maximum umfunded amounis are summanzed
in the tble below:

March 31, March 31,
2021 2020

Commitmenis!

Crednl facilities commitments with deakers 5 233 5 1,226

Commitments under operating lease agreements 141 139
Total commutingmis 2479 1365

Girantees of afiliale pollutioan control and solid waste disposal bouds ) LT lon
Total communmenis and guaraniocs 5 2319 5 1463

Whelesale inmicing is not considered 1o be a contractn] commuitnent as the amugenients are nol binding
arrangemens undar which TMOC is required 10 perfonm,

Canrmitaents

We provide fixed and variable rate working capital loans, revolving lines of credit, and real estne financing 1o dealers
and variees multi-lfranchise organizakons referred w as dealer groups for Baciliics construction and refurbishiment,
workimg capital requiremenis, real cstaie purchases, business acquisitions and other general busimess purposcs. These
loms are tvpically seeured with liens on real estate, vehicle inventory, andior oiber dealership assets, is appropriale,
and may be puaranteed by individual or corporate guarantees of affiliated denlers, dealer proups, or dealer principals.
Although e foans are tvpically collmeralized or guaranteed, tse value of e underlving collateral or guarantees nuy
nod b sufficicnt 1o cover our exposure under such agreements, Our pricing reflects market conditions, the competitive
environment, the level of suppon dealers provide our retnl, bease and voluntary proqection business and the credit
worihiness ol each dealer. Amwoamds draven under these Facilities are reviewed for collectabiliiy on a quarierly basis, in

conjuntion with our evaluation of e allowane for credit losses. We have also extended credin facihings 1w affiliates
as described in Mote 12 — Related Pany Trunsactions.

Lewse Commitmenis

O operuiting lease porifolio consisis of real csinie leases. Total operuting lease expense, including paymients o
affiliaies, was 536 million for fscal 2021, 336 million for fscal 2020, and 530 million fiscal 201%, We have a lease
agresment throueh August 2052 with TMNA for our headguarters facility in Plane, Texas. Commitments under
operting lease agrecments in the tible above include 593 million and S102 million for facilitics beases with afMilines
al March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Lease terms may contain renewnl and extension oplions o carly 1enmination feares, Generally, these options do not
impact the lease term because TMOC 15 mot reasonably centmn that it will exercise the options. Thesc lease
agrecments div nol impase restriciions on our ability 1 pay dividends, engage in deb or equity finaneing iransactions
ot enler into further lease agreements, nor do they have residual value guamnices. 'We exclude Trom our Consolidaied
Halmmee Sheets leases with a teom equal o ong year or less and do nol separaie non-lgase components from our real
eslule leases,
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Chir conmmatisents under opersing lease agreements are summarised below:

March 31,
Y ears ending March 31, 2021 )
2022 3 6
223 I8
2024 16
2025 13
2026 12
Thigrealicr ) 6
Total 5 141
Present value discount {167
Total operating lease labiliy -] ]

Operating lease liabikitics and rghi-of-use {*ROLU™) assets are recogniocd at the kase commencement dale basced on
the present valie of the future mininarn lease payments over the lease temi, As the interest mte inplicit in the lease
contract i bypically nod readily determinable, we utilize our meremental borrowing mite at the lease commencemeni

date Tor the duration of the lease e,

The following table provides additiosal information related to operating bease agreenents for which we are the lessee:

March 31,
221
RO assens i
Weighted average remaining leass term (in years) .56
Weighted average discount rate 27T%

"

Supplemental cash Mow information

Cash paid for asnouiits included in the measurement af

lease liabilitics - operating cash Nows 5
Suipplementil nod-casl mfomnmalion

KO assels obtamned m exchiange for operating kease obligatons H 15

)
L V]

s
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Ginarantees and Other Conlingeneies

TMCC has guaranteed bond obligations isdaling S 1080 million in principal that were issued by Puinam Couniy, Wesi
Yirginia and Gibson County, Indioma 1o fmance the construction of pollution control facilities ol manufacturing plants
of cenain TMOC afMilines, The bonds matiere inthe following fiscal vears ending March 312 2028 - 820 million; 2029
= S50 million; 20340 « $10 mallion; 2031 « 510 million; and 2032 - $10 million. TMOC would be required 1o perfonn
unger the guaramees in e event of nog-pavinent on (e bonds and other rekied obligations. TMOC is cmitled 1o
reimbursement by the applicable affilianes for any mnounts paid. TMOC receives & nomimal annul fee for
guarameeing such payments, TMOC has nol been required w perform under any of these aMiliate bond guaranices as
of March 31, 2021 and 2020,

Tudemnification

In the ordinary course of bisiness, we enter inle agreements conialning mdemnification provisions siandard in the
industry related to several types of mansactions, including, but nod limited 1o, debt hnding, derivatives, scocuntizaton
iransactions, and our vendor, supplier and service ngreements. Performunce under these indenmnities would generally
occur upon a breach of the representations, wirrantics, covenuis or other commitmen?s made or given in the
agresimenl, of 48 a fesult of o Muind-party ¢laim. [n sddivion, we have agreed in cerumn debt and derivative issuanices,
and subject to cennin exceptions, (0 gross-up paymenis duc to third partics in the event that withholding tax is imposed
on such pavments. I addition, certan of our fesding armngements muy requine us (o pay lenders for increased costs
due o ceriain changes in laws or regulations. Due o the difficulty in predicting evems which could cause  breach of
the idemnifcation provisions or rgger 4 gross-up of siher payvment obligation, we are nol able 10 estimale our
ki exposure 1o fumre payments that could result from claims made under such provisions, We have not made
any malerz] payiscnts in ihe st a5 a cesull of these provisions, and as of Marcl 30, 2021, we determined thal il is oo
protable ihat we will be required to make any mstenal paymienis in the future. As of Murch 31, 2021 and 2020, no
amsainls lave been reconded under these indempilcalion provisions,

Litigation and Governmental Procecdings

Various legal actions, governmernal proceedings and oler claims are pending or mey be instimted or asseried in the
future agamst us with respect bo muiters arising i the ordinary course of business. Ceriain of these aclions are or
purpsat to b class action swits, seeking sizeable damages and'or changes in our business operations, policies and
practices. Certaim of these actions are similar o suits that have been fled apainst other finuncial mstiutions and
captive Mnee companics. In addition, we arg subject to governmsentil and regulmorny examinations, informaition-
galhenng requests, and investigations Trom teme to time o the stale and federal levels. 1t s inherently difficult 1o
predict the conrse of such legal actinns and governmental inquirics,

We porform periodic reviews of pending clidms avd actioaes to detenming the probability of adverse verdicts and
resulting amounts of liability, 'We establish accruals for legal claims when paviments associated with the claims
become probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. When we are able, we also determine estimates of
reisonably probeble loss or range of bess, wlscther in excess of any relzed accrued liability or where there is oo
accrued liability. Given the inherent uncertainty associated with legal maners, the aciual costs of resolving legal
claims and associsted costs of defense may be substaniially higher or lower than the amounts for which accrals have
been established. Based on available mformation and established acerwals, we do nod believe it 1s reasonably probable
that the results of these proceedings, cither individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse ¢ffect on our
consoliduted finzcinl condition or results of operitions,

O November 24, 20040, the Consumer Financial Peoiection Burcau ("CFPB") issued a civil imvesiigative demand 1o
the Company seeking, among other things, certain infornation relating 1o the Company's vehicle and payment
protection prodicts and credit reponing palicies and procedures and reponing records, We dre cooperting with the
incuiry and canngd predict the eventual scope, duriion or ouleene 3t this tme, As o resalt, we e wable o ssnmae
the amount or Fange of any polential loss ansing from this imvestipation.

[
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Miite 10— niik o

Wi are a participatmg employer in ¢ertain retirement and post-retrement medical care, lefe insurance, and other
benefits sponsored by TMNA, an affiliate, Cosis of each plan are generally allocated to TMOC based on relative
benelit costs associaled with participating or ¢ligible emplovees at TMOC as companed 1o the plan as a whole.

Defiped Benefit Plan

Prior 1o January 1, 2015, our employees wene generally eligible 1o panticipate in the Tovola Maor Sales, US A, Inc.
Pension Pln (the " Pension Plan™) conimencing on the first day of the momb folbowing hire and were vested after $
years of continsous cmployvment. Effective January 1, 2005, the Pension Plan was closed 1o employees st emploved
or reemploved onor afier such date.

Benefits payable wisder s non-coninbulory defined benclit pension plan are based, generally, wpon the employvees
years of crediled service (up to a maximum of 25 yvears), the highest average annual compensation {as defined in the
plan) for any &0 consecutive month period out of the lasi |20 months of employment (the “Applicable Years"), and
one-half of cligible bonus/gift payments for the Applicable Yeurs (recalculated to determine the annual average of
such amount ), reduced by o pescemtage of the esifmated mmount of sacial security benelits.

Costs allocated 1o TMOC for our employees im the Pension Plan and certain other non-qualified plins were not
significanl fos fiscal 2021, 2020 and 2019,

Dhefivned Ceonrtribastion Plan

Emplovess meeting certin elignbility requiremenis. as delined in (he plan documenls, may participate i the Tovala
Mhotor Morth Amenica, Inc. Retirement Savings Plin, Under this plan, eligible emplovees may elect 1o contribute
between | peroent amnd 30 pereent of their eligible pre-tax compensation, subject to federal 1ax regulation limits. We
much 66,67 percent of the first 6 peroent that @ participant contribuies, wp to 4 percend of eligible compensation,
Panicipanis are always 100 vested e thear contnbutions w the Retirement Savings Plan, Emplover comribulions
vest on a 4-yemr praded schedule at 25 percent per vear. Generally, contributsons are funded through bi-weekly
paviments to the plan's sdmissirator. Cenmn comployees hired on or after January |, 2005, may be cligble 1o receive
un additionn] Company contribution to the plan calculated based on their age and compensation.

TMOC employer contribuiions 1o the savings plan were noi signilican for fiscal 2021, 2020 and 2019

hiher Posi-Retirerment Benefiv Plans

Employees are generally eligible o participate in other post-retirement benefits sponsored by TMNA which provide
certain meedical care and life insurunce benefils to cligible retired emplovees. Generally, in order 1o be eligible for
these benefits, the employee must be age 55 or elder with 10 er more yvears of service,

Chher post-retirement benefit costs allocated 10 TMOC were nod significant for fiscal 2021, 2020 and 2019,

[
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W uge the lubility imethod of sccounting For income taxes under which defemed L assets and labilitees are sdjusted
to reflect changes in tax rates and laws in the period such changes are enacted resulting in adjustments 1o the current
fiscal wear's provision (or mcome [axes.

TMCC files a consolidared federal income tax resurn with TFSIC and it subsidiaries. Current and deferred federal
incoane tixes are allocated 10 TMOC as if i were a sepanue tispayer, TMOC's net operating bosses and tax crodits are
utilized when Usese losses and credils are wsed by TFSIC and ins subsidiaries including TMOC o il consolidsied
federal incomie tax rebwm. TMOC files cither separate or consolidmed combined state income s reurms with TMBA,
TFSIC, or subsidiarics of TMOC, Stae income mx expense is gencermlly recognized a5 il TMCC and ins subsidiorics
filed their tax reiumms on a stand-alone basis. In those states where TMOC and its subssdiarics join i the Oling of
consolidaicd or combincd imcome tax reiums, TMOC and its subsidianics are allocated their share of the total income
tax expense based on combined allocationapporioniment factors and separme compaiy incoine of koss, Based on ihe
federal and stwie tax sharing agreements, TFSIC and TMIOC and its subsidiarics pay for their share of the income tax
expense and are reimbursed for the benefil of any of teir tax losses and eredits wlilieed in the federal and state income
1A% [CITs,

The provision For ineome Gaxes consssied of the followng:

Years ended March 31,

221 20200 2019

Current
Federal H] 2,7 5 (19 5 (55)
Sdte 386 120 Th
Forcign : A & 4

Total 3153 1ix 15
Deferred
Federal 12,243) 145 7
State (276) (141} ()]
Forcign B - i1 i

Total {3,531) 2 157
Provision for income axcs 5 632 § 111 5 182
A reconcilintion between the US. federad stitutory tax rote and the effective tnx rale 15 as follows:

) Yiears ended March 31, -
1 —L L

Provigion for income axes 31 LS. federal stfulory 1ax rabe 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Stwle and local taxes (net of federal tix benefity L% 4.0% 407
Eiffect of state tax law changes {0.2)% (347 (1.37%
Federal tax credits {0.5)1% {377 (1LY
Tax rate differential from tax boss carryback - {5.6)% 2.8)%
Adjustment for prior year provision o neturn differences {0.2)% (1L.0)Y% (147%
Other, net LAY - (0.5 %
Effective tax me 23.0% 10L8% 15.6%

The amwomils. in Federal tax credits include tax benefils from aliermative fuel vehicle credits and foreign tix credits for
fiscal 2021 and 2020, and plug-in velicle eradits and research and developnsent erediis for fiscal 2021, 2020, and
2009,

s
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O et deferred mcomse tax liahlity consisted of the following deferred inx labilitics and assets:

) Murch 31,
L —- .
Linlsilities:
Lemxse transaclions 5 2765 % 5,180
Seate taxes, nel of federal 1ax benefit 77 fenat]
Volumary protection dealer commissions 290 254
Mark-io-market of investments m marketoble secuntics and dervatives M 14
Oiher ; 82 B3
Dielerred tax labilities 5 1548 % 6, |60
Asspis:
Provision for eredit and resadul value bosses 421 T
Deferred costs i foes 187 [EH]
Net operuting loss and tax credil carmyforwrds 9 (L]
Lewse obligmions 27 25
Oither | 32
Deferred tax assets T Tis
Valuation allowance (9} {13)
Mt deferred tax assers 5 688§ Ta2
Med deferred incomse fax liabality ! 5 RG0S 5458

! Dalence includes defemed tax hiabilities altributable to anreallized gains or bosses incloded in accumubaled other comprehensive
meoms: o loss, pet of 52 million and $4 million ot March 51, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The change in this halance is nod
mchided o 1ola] deferned tax expense.

We have po deferred 1ax asseis related 1o cumulative lederal ned eperating loss carry forwards i March 31, 2021 or
March 31, 2000, We have deferred @ax assets related to cummlsbive siafe net operating boss camy lorwards ol 525
imillion and 337 million o March 21, 2021 and March 31, 2020, respectively. State net operating bss carrylorwands
will expire beginning in fiscal 2023,

We have no deferred 1ax assets related 1o federal 1ax credins for alicrmanive fuel vehicles and plug-in vehicles and
rescarch und development ui March 31, 2021, This is compared 1o defemed tax asscts reloted io federal tax crediis for
abtermtive fuel velucles wmd plag-in vehicles, amd research and development of 552 million and % 10 million at March
31, 2020, respectively. We have deferred 1ax assets related to federal t oredit for foreizn tax of 53 meillion snd S1
million at March 21, 2021 and March 21, 2020, respectively, The federal tax credit carryforwards will expire
bepinning in fiscal 2028,

Thie deferred ax assels related 1o foreign tax credil and slate lax el operalig loss carmylorwards are reduced by o
vaaluation allowance of 89 million and 513 million at Maorch 31, 2020 and March 31, 2020, respectively. The
determination of the valuaion allvwance is based on management’s estimaie of future txable income during the
respective camyforward periods. Apan from the valuation allowance, we believe that the remaining defemed 1ax xssels
will be realized in full. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable coubd be reduced il management’s
estimates change.

104
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W have miade an mssertion of permanent remnvestment of earnimges from our foreio subsidiary: as a result, other than
the deemed repatnation tx that is provided pursuant (o he Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2007, stase and local taxes have
oot been provided for anremiteed camings of our [oneign subsidiary. At March 31, 2021 and 2020, these unremitied
eamings ioaled 5251 million and 3243 million, respectively. Deerminaiion of the amount of the deferred siate and
Tocal tx liability is mol practicable, and accordingly no estimaie of the unrecorded defiermed state and local x Liability
is provided,

Although we do not foresee any evenls cawsing repatriation of eamings. possible examples way include but are not
limeited to parcnt company capital needs or exiting the busingss in the forcign country,

We had an income 1ax payable of $35 million and S47 million for our share of the income tx i those states where we
filed consolidated or combined reiums wath TN A and its subsidianics ot March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,
respectively. Additiomally, owr federn] and state income tax pavable or recetvable from TMCC affilioted companies,
including TFSIC, Toyola Finuncial Savings Bank (TF5H), and Toyoeda Financial Services Sccuritics USA Compomtion,
was nod signaficant for badh March 31, 2021 and 2020,

The guidance for the accounting and reporting for incomne (xes requires us 10 assess 1ax positions im cases where the
interpretation ol the tx kaw may be unceniaim, The change inumrecognised tax benefiis are as follows:

Mareh 31,
021 020 2019

Bakanoe at begmange of the year 5 1% 5 Tis 6
Increases reled 1o positions taken during e curment year I 12 |
Increases recorded in current vear related 1o positions tken

during prior yeurs 2 . -
Expirations duc 1o lapse of stuuie ] - -
Balance at end of year 5 i % 19 3 7

Al March 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 approximately 514 million, 517 million and $6 million of the respective
unrecognized tax beneliis would, if recognized, have an effect on the effective tix raie, The remaining amounis in the
respective unrecopnied tax benelits al March 31, 2020, 2020 and 2009 are reloted to tming muatters, During fiscal
2021, 53 million of the net decreass in unrecognized tax benefits had an effect on the effective 1ax rate. We do not
e any positions for wlich it 15 reasonably possible that the wal amounts of unrecognired tax benelits will
significanily increase or decrease within 12 months,

W acerue mterest, i applicable, related 1o uncerain eoime ax posilions in nleresl expense. Stalulory peialtics, i
applicable, accrucd with respect to uncemain income tax pasitions are recognized as an addition 1o the income tnx
Tiability. For cach of fiscal 2021, 2020, and 2019, scemed inferest was nol significant and no penaltics were acerped.

Tav-redinted Continpencies
Ag af Mareh 31, 2021, we remmined under RS exambation for seal 2021, fecal 2020, Gecal 2019, and fscal 2018,

1
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Note 12 - Related Party Transictions
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The tables below show the linancial statement line nems awd amoums included in our Consolidated Stalenents of
Incame and in our Consalidated Balance Shects under vanous relaied party agreements or relationshaps:

Mt Minancing revenoes:
Manufscturer's subvention and oher revenes

Depreciation on opemiing leases

Interest cxpense:
Credit suppon Fees, interest and odher expenses

Voluntary protection contract revenues
and insurance carned premiums:

Voluniary protection coniraci revenes
and insurance earmed premiums

Iavestment amid other income, net:
Interest and oiber mcome

Expenscs:
Operating and administrative expenscs

5

Voliwmary protection contract expenses and insunnce losses 5

Years ended March 31,

2021
1,997
(113

17

3

a1

]

5
1

200
2,065

(59}

Ot

151

2

102

U Amsount mbides the iranaler of volustary prolechon conimel expenses under o remsirnse conlyc
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Note 12 - Rdated Party Transctions (Continued)

March 31, March 31,
2021 2020

Asseis:
Cash wmil cash equivalents

Commercial paper 5 6 % 276
Investments in marketable securitics

Commercial paper 5 196 % G0l
Finance receivables, met

Accoumts receivable 5 140 % iz

Diefered resa] subvention income 5 (1,156) 3 (1.065)
Investments in sperating leases, net

Investmenis in operating leases, mel 5 236) § [RLLIH]

Defemred lease subvention income 5 [L528) § (1m0
Onher assets

Notes recevable 5 Hil 8 1175

Onther receivables, met 5 LRI a7
Linbilities:
Other linbilitics

Uneamed vohmiary protection contract revemies

and insurance earmed premiums 3 kLI - 144
Otleer payables, wet 5 e s 230
Motes pavable 5 | L 3032

TMOC receives subvenlion pavimedils lroin TMMNA wlidch resulls i a gross nsathily subveistion receivable. As ol
March 31, 2021 and 2020, the subvention receivable from TMMNA was 5184 million and 5113 million, respectively.
We have a master neiing agreement with TMNA which allows us 1o net senle payments for shased services and
subvention transactions. Under this agreement, as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, respectively, we had a net
amonin| payable to TMRA which is recorded in Other payables, net in Other lisbilities,

Onir Board of Directors declared and paid eash dividends of $To0 million o TFSIC during fiseal 2021,
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Mie 12— : r n i

Fimancing Suppart Arrangemants with Affilfintes

TMCC 15 pariy io a eredii support agreemeni with TESC (the “TMCC Credii Suppori Agreemeni™). The TMOC
Cradil Suppon Agrecment requires TFSC to maintuin cortain ownership, net worth manmenance, and debd service
provisions with respect 1o TMOC, but is not 4 guarantee by TFSC of any securitics of obligations of TMCC, In

conjupctioa with this credit support agreement, TMOC has agreed 1o pay TFSC a semi-annual foe bised on a lixed tie
applicd wihe weiglied average oulsianding wmount of securites eotitled to credin suppont,

TCPR 15 the benelciary of a credit suppor agreement wilth TFSC containbig provisioins similar (o e TMCC Credii
Suppon Agreement described above,

I addinion, TMOC receaves suppont From and provides nancing suppon 1o TFSC and eaher aiTiliates m the form of
promissory noles and various loan and credit facility agreements. As of March 31, 2021 and 2020, fotn] financing
support available from alfiliates wialed approxinately S5.6 billson and 58,4 billion, respestively. As of March 31,
2021 and 2020, todal financing supporn available to aifilines totaled approximately $7.1 billion and 568 billion,
respectively. The mnounts catstanding wider these agresments ang recorded i Ciher assets and Ciher habilities in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2021 and 2020,

I Apeil M2 1, TMCC inereased fnancing suppont availible to Tovola Finance New Zealand Limited 10 $250 million

I fscal 2020, we drew upon our revalving credit facility with TMS for a principal amount of %3.00 billion with an
interest rae of 1 86%, and on July 30, 2020, we volunanly repaid (e draw and aecrued ingerest in full, The amoun
was recorded in Other linbilitics on our Consolidaied Balance Shecet nnd funds were wsed for general corporate
purpses, In April 2021, as the existing credin facihiny was 61 to expire, TMOC re-emiered wio a 550 billion e
vear revelving credit facility with TMS expiring in fscal 2025,

(hher Finaneing Support Provided to Affiltones

TMCC provides wholesale fiancing. real estate and working capital boans to certain dealerships that were
consolidaied with anoter alfiliaie under (e accounting gubdance for variable interest emitics. TMOC also pays these
dealers originution fecs. These costs represent direct costs meurred im connection with the acquisition of retail and
lease contracts, inclhding subveniion and other cash incentive prograns,

TMCC has guaranteed the paymenls of principal and interest with respect 1o the bonds of manufasctuning facilitics of
certain lfilioes. The nature, busingss purpose, and amasmis of these guaraniecs ane described in Mote 0
Commitments and Contingencies.

TMOC and TFSB are partics 1o a4 masier participation agrecment pursuand 1o which TMOC agreed 1o purchaise no
more than S60 million per vear of residentinl mortgage loans onginated by TFSE thal mieet specified credit
underarinng guidelines. At March 31, 2021 and 2020, we had $13 million and $22 million, respectively, i loan
participaiions outstanding tha had been purchased by TMOC under s agreement.
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r n i

Khared Nevvice Arrangements with Affilintes
TMOC is subject to the following shared service agreemends:

TMOC imcurs costs wnder various shared service mereements with TMNA and other alfiliates, Services
provided by afMilises under the shared service agreements inchade ceriaim technological and administrtive
services, such as information sysiems suppor, facilives, insurance coverage, human resources and other
corporate services, TMCC may also participate and incor costs in shared marketing efforts with TMNAL

TMOC provides various services 10 115 subsidiaries and affilines, including cenain adminismative snd
corponale services, operational support. inforiation sysiems suppor, fcilitics, reasury, and vendor
IMHIARCINCTH SETVices.

TMCC provides various services io TFSB, imcluding marketing, adminisimiive, sysicms, and operaiional
support mexchange for TFSB makig available ceran Mmancial products and services o TMOC s
cusiomers and dealers mesting TFSB s credil standards. TMOC is pany 10 & masier netiing agrecment
with TFSB, which allows TMOC (o net scitle payments for shared services between TMOC and TFSB.

TMCC is a party w0 expense reimbursement agreements with TFSB and TFSC relsted 1o costs incurmed by
TMCC or these affiliates on behall of the other party in commection with TMICCs provision of services 1o
these affiliates or the provision by these affiliates of cerinin financial products and services to our
customers and dealers in suppon of TMCC s custamer lovalty sirmieey aid progeams, and oler braisd and
sales suppon.

114
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Oparrational Supgsord Arvawngements witl Affilintes

TMCC and TCPR provide various wholesale financimg to dealers, which result in us having payables to
ThINA and Tovotn de Pueno Rico Corp,

TMCC is party 1o a lease agreement with TMNA for our headquariers Bcility in Plano, Texas, expirmg in
2032, our C5C located in Cedar Ragids, lows, expiring in 20249, and owr Dallas Data Cender expiring in
20026 The beage commmitmaents are described in Mote 9 = Commitments and Comingencies.

Subventson receinvable represents amounts due from TMMNA and other affiliates i support of retail and
Tease subvention amd ofler cash incentive programs offered by TMCC, Deferned subwention incame
represents the uncamed portion of amdunis reccived from Uese transsetions, and manufscturers”
subvemion and ether revenues primarily represent the camed pomion of such amounis

Inwestment in operating leases includes comraciual residual value suppor reccived from alfilimes which
are recognized as an ofTset 1o deprecintion expense over the life of the contmet.

TMCC is a participating cmployer in ceriain retirement, post-retirement medical care and life insurnce
benefits sponsored by TWMNA. Refer 1o Note 10 = Pension and Other Benelit Plans for additional
informatioan.

TMCC ks party 10 agreements with TMNA and other afliliates rekaring to e weam member vehicle bengfit
progerum, which allows teum members (o lewse Toyola wnd Lexus velicles on lenms exclusive W the
bewelit program. TMNA serves as (e chiel adminisirator of the program, TMOC sequires and services
team member leases after origination. A portion of the vehicles used for the team member vehicle benefit
program are aequired from TMMNA, TMOC receives a per vehicle coninbution from panicipating
afTilEates 10 nssist with the costs of its contribution 1o te benelit progran, and TMCOC pavs a per vehicle
participation fee to TMNA to pariicipaie in the benefit program.

Alfliate volumiary prolection coniret revenues il insurie ewrngd premiums primarily sepresent
reveres fromm TMIS for covernge and related administrative services provided 1o TMMNA and other
aiTiliates. This includes contractunl indermnity coverage for limited warranties on cenifled Toyoia and
Lexus pre-oomed vehicles and related administrative services for TMRA's centified pre-owned vehicle
program and wnbeella liakility policy. TMIS also provides wmbsella liability insurance to TSMNA and
other affiliates covering cerain dollar value layers of nsk above vanous prinary or self-insured
retentiong, O all livers i which TMWIS has peovided coverape, 9 percent ol the risk hes been coded 10 4
reinsurer.
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Mie 13~ v A '

Fair walue is defimed as the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid (o transfer a labality in an orderly
transaction bemween markel participans at the measurement dave. In arder 1o determing fir valoe of our assees and
liabilities, we wse quated prices o identical or similar mstrumens, sherwise we ulilize valuation models with
obscrvable or calculated inpuis. The use of observable quoses for idemiical or similar insirumenis and the use of
unobservable mputs is refected in e Gair value hicrarchy assessment disclosed in the mbles within as Note as Level
1, 2and 3 defised below, The availabiliy of observable inpuis can viry bissed upon the fmncial instrument and odher
factors, such as instrunsent type, market Liguidity and other specific characienstics particular to the financial
imstrument, To thie extent that a vitluation is based on models or irpuls that are less observable o unobservable in the
market, the detemmination of fur vilue requires additional judgment by managenicnt, We use prices mwd ipuals tha
are current as of the measurcmendt dage, incleding during periods of market disruption. In periods of market disnaption,
the availability of prices and inputs may be reduced for cenabn Nnancinl instrumems. This conditben could resull ina
financial instrument being reclassified from Level | to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3.

Level 13 Quoted (uradjusted) prices in active markets dua are accessible a1 e measurement date lor idestical,
unrestricted Assets or lighilities,

Level 2 Quoted prices i astive markets For simlbar assets and labnhioes, or inpats that ane observable, cither directly
or indirectly, for substantindly the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Unebservable inpuls that are supponed by Hile or no marker activity and may require significam psdgment
in order to determing the e value of the asscis and liabilities,

Valnation Adjwstmenis

W may muke valiation sdjustments 1o ensure il Gaincial instruments are reconded at fair value, These adjustmenis
include wmoamis 1o reflect coanterpany credit quality, our own creditwonhiness, as well as constraings dise 1o market
illiquidity or unobservable parameiers.

Recurring Foir Value Measurennnis
Caxh and cash equivalents and Restricied cash and coxh equivalenis

The fair value of eash equivalens and resinicied cash equivalems approximaies the carrying value and ihese
instruments are classified as Level | within the fuir value hicrarchy,

Dirvesrments fr ararketable secupites

W estinnate the value of our AFS debd securnitics wsing observed trnsaction prices, independent third-party pricige
vatluation vendors, and inienal valution models.

We may hold investmemis in actively traded open-cnd and private placement equity investments. Where the equity
investmenis produce a daily et asset value that is quoted in an active market, we use this value to determine the Fair
vilue of the cquity investment and classify the investment as Level | within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of
equity mvestments th produce o daily nee asset valie that is not quoled in an sctive market is esimaied using the net
asset value per share (or its equivalent) as practical expedient and are excluded from leveling within the fasr value
hicrarchy,

In ndditson, we may hold mdividual secunties where valuation methodoboies and inpuis to valuation models depend
on the securiny 1ype, ihus they may be classified differently within the leveling hicrarchy. Where possible, quoted
prices in active markets for identical or similar securities are wsed to determane e for value of the imvestment
securitics: those seourities are classified as Level | or 2, respectively, Where quated prices in active markets are nol
avankable, we use various viluation models for each assen class thal are consistent with whil nsrkel participants use.
The inpuis and assumptions o the models are derived from market observable sources including: benchmiark viclds,
reporied (rwbes, broker'dealer quotes, Bsuer spreads, benclunark seourties. bads, ofTers. wisl other market-relined dinia
These invesmments are generally classilied as Level 2 within the fixir value hierarchy, however, depending on the
significance of the unobservable inputs they may also be classified as Level 3,
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Miite 1.3~ W | ] 0

I erivaiives

We estimaic ihe fair value of our derivaiives using mdusiny siandard vaheation models thal require observable markei
ioputs, inctuding market prices. interest rales, foreign exchange rates, volatilites, counterparty credil nisk, our own
non-performance risk and the contracnual enms of the derivative instruments, W consider counerparty credit risk
wind our own non-performmince sk thoough credit valuation sdjustuments.

For derivatives tsn wade in lguid markers, maodel inputs can gencrally be verified and o nor require significam
mimeagene judemient. These dervidive mstrumients are classified as Level 2 withdn the G valoe hierarchy,

Cerlain other derivative iransactions trade in less liquid markets with limied pricing information. For such
derivatives, key inpuls to the valuation process include quotes from counterpartics and other market data used 1w
corroboraie and adjusi values where appropniaie, Ckiher market data includes values obtained from a market
partisipant that serves as a third-pany vahwtion vendor, These derivalive instruments are classified as Level 3 within
the fair vinlue hierarchy.

Nonrecurring Foir Vilwe Measuremenry

Monrccurring fair vilue measurements mclude Level 3 net finance receivables thai are not measured at fair value ona
recurming basis but are subject 10 fair value adjustments wilizang the Gur valee of the underlying collmernl when there
is evidence of impuirment. Monrecurnng fair value items as of March 31, 2021 and 2020 were not significant.  Retml
finsince recervables gremter tan 120 diys past due are measared it for vidug based o (e Fuie vilue of the wsderlying
collateral bess costs to sell. The fuir value of collateral is based on the curment werage selling prices for like wvehicles ot
wholesale used vehicle auctions.
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N 3= v q ]

Financial assets and fimancial labilites are classafied in their entirely based on (s lowest level of mmpat thal is
significan tothe Guir valise measurement, The following 1ables summarize aur financial jssets and fingncial labalitics
measured ot fair value on a recurring basis by level within the fir valoe hierarcly excepl for cerain investments il
are measiwred at fair value using the net asser value per share (or iis cquivalend) as a praciical expedient and are
excluded froan (e levelmg informmation provided i the tbles below.  Fair value amounts presented bebow are intended
i permil reconcilimion of ibe fir valee hicrrchy w ihe amounis presenied in our Conselidsied Balice Sheets.

March 31, 2021
Counsrparny
meiting & Fair
Level I Level 2 Level 3 easllateral value
Frvestmenes i markenhle secunnes;
Avaikable-Tor-sale debl secailies:
LA, government and agensy obligaisms % e % A - 3 - % 30
Municpal debt securibies - 1 - - 1o
Commercinl paper Riv] 176 a a | s
Corpomie debil securitics - 187 - - 187
Monga ge-backed secummics
LLS. govommend agonoy - n - . i
Mog-agency resideniial - - | e 1
Mop-agency commeencial . -] 42 47
Assoishacked securitics - 1% ki) . 52
Available-forssale debi securvites dnial ) 431 T T
Expunly mveskmsmis:
Fixal ineoene manual funids
Fixed mcome mutnal fursds mensured s
nat assel valoe T2
Total return Bomd funds = 242
Figuity mmitisal fands - f.t]
Eauaty investmengs sl 3% i - 40154
Investments i markenbde seoanies waal 451 T N ]
Denivative sssis:
et rate swaps - 1026 - - 1024
Forcigm camency swaps - (L] - . KEL]
Coustempanmy neming sl collacral - - - {1302 (1.302)
Derivative sscis bt RSN PR = .. SR, . SOR L.} SN
Assets at fair vahe 3541 1,THY Th {1,302 § AHTA
Dervvative liahalitios:
Intezest mic swaps - 111423 - - 1142y
Forcipm camaky swaps - §243) - - (243
Cousterpany neming sl collsieral - - - 1,384 1,354
Liabalities nt fasr value — (L] — 13840 i
Mol mects ni fmr value 5 1541 % -Iﬂ 3 ™ % E 5 ‘IHJ

1&
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N 3= v q ]

_March 31, 2020
Camnleijuty
netiing & Fuir
Mevell el leveld  collwonl  wabie
Investments i marketohle secanities;
Available-for-sile debt socumilios:
U A, government and agency abligatons 13 174 5 2 % - & - & | T
Municapnl dehd secuntios - 11 - - 11
Uertificaies of deposi E MY E E 244
Commercial paper - ] - - il
Carpomie deba securitics . 197 C e 1 %7
Maorpige-backed securtios
LIS govermmen sgency - A0 - - ELy
Moprngency residential - - I - 1
Moreagency codmercial e . 45 E 45
Asaet-hacked securities - - - i r - n
Available-for-sale dei securmics wal 174 (L 1g - 1401
LFquaty mmvestmenis:
Fixad meome matual lands
Fised sneonse mutaal fursds measured a1
meet asset value T
Total return Bomidl fisnds 1673 - - - | KTE]
Fequity investments bois| (K - - - 2419
Imvestments in markeinhie secorities intal I EAT 1, b 118 - L]
Dervvative asseis:
Ineevcsn rate swaps = AL = = 1410
Forcign camency swaps . 7 - - Fa
Cousicipany neining snd collaicral . - . - (1.384)
Derivative assets total - - 51
Asscts at fnir value IE4T 118 3871
Dierwvativg hahalimes:
Interest mie swaps . [1826) - . {1826
i'nr:ipn RO Y SWaAjTE - [ =510 - - 1. 2%
Cousviemanmy neing snid collsiers] - - - I . AT
Linbilities ai fair value 2 . @116) - 34171 (45}
Ml pasets at fmr value % LEAT & G5 & 118 5 LS & I
Level 3 Fair Vialve Meusirements

The Level 3 financial assets and liabalities recorded at fair value which are sabgect to recurmng and nonrecuming fur
value measurement, and ihe corresponding activity and change in the fair value measurenents of these assets and
Ibalnics, were not sigmficant to our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, or Consolidated
Statemeits of Income for the venrs ended Mareh 31, 2021 and 2020,

19
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Fimancial frestramvents Nof Careied of Fair Value

Finanee recenables

Chir finance receivables consist of retal] loans and dealer financing loans, which are comprized of whelesale, real
cstate and working capitl financing. Retail finance reccivables arc primarily walucd using a securitization model that
incorporiies expecied cash Mows, Cash fews expecied 1o be collecied are estimated wsing contractual principal and
imtenest pyments adjusted for specilic fctors, such as prepayments, extensions, defaull rales, 1oss severity, credil
scores, aind collateral tvpe. The securiivmation mode] uiilizes quoled secondary inarket niles ifavailuble, or estinisled
market rales thal incorporate management's best estimate of investor assunypions about the ponfolio, The dealer
(mascing porifolio s vislued using a discounted cash Qow model. Discount mics ang derived based on marke! rales for
cquivalent portfolio bond ratings. As these valumions utilize unobservable inputs, our Anance reccivables are
classified as Level 3 withim the fiir value ierarchy.

Unsecured notes amd oans payvable

The fair value of comsercial paper is assumed to approximate (e enrrving vibue due 1o itz dhont durstion angd
generally negligible credit nisk. Wie validate this assumption by recalculating the fair value of our commereial paper
using quaded market rates. Cosnmnercial paper 18 clossified a8 Level 2 withan the fair vahee ligrarchy:

(hher unsecured notes and loans pavable are primarily valued wsing current market rates and credin spreads for debt
with similar metnies, Cir vaheation models unlve observabbe inpats such as standard industry curves; therefore, we
classify these unsecured noies and foans payables as Level 2 within the fair value hicrarchy, When ehservable inputs
are nol available for all assumpaions, we estioate the e value using intenml assumptions such as volatiliey and
capecied credit losses. As these vahutions utilize unobservable inpuis, we classily these unsccured notes and loans
pavable as Level ¥ within ihe Fair value hierarchy.

Secured notes aund Toars povalde

Fair value is estimined based on current market raies and credit spreads for deba with simalar maturities. We also use
intemial assumptions, mcheding prepaymend speeds and expected credil bosses on the wnderdving scouritized asscis, (o
estinate the timing of cash MNows to be paid on these insirumenms. As these vahations ulilize wnobservable inputs, our
secured notes and loans payables are clussified as Level 3 within the fair valee hierarchy.

dier fiohilitfes

Our Other liabilities include notes payvable to relsied partics. As these notes are shon term in nature, the carryving
vitlue is decmed 1o approximase fiir value and they are clissified s Level 3 within the Fair vailue higrarchy,

141
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Mie 1.3~ W | RLILY n

Fimancial Instrenvenis

The following tables provide information abowi assets and liabilities nod earmied ai fair valoe on a recurming basis on
our Consolidated Baluwe Sleets:

) Murch 31, 2021 _
Carrying Tenal Fair
~ vitlug _Level | Level 2 Level3d _value

Financial asscts
Finance receivables
Retail loan 5 65808 5§ - 8 - 5 00T 5 60007
Whalesule 6,132 - - 6158 G 158
Real esiale 5,142 - - 5124 52114
Working capital 2154 - - 2171 2171
Financial Halidlites
Linsecured notes and loans payable 5 E551% § = % EA2OS § 555 8% ROG,TAO
Secured nodes and hoans payable 2422 - - 24478 24478
March 31, 2020
Carryinig Total Fair
villue Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
Financial asscis
Finance receivables, net
Retail loan 5 56360 § - 5 - 8 M3 §F 57303
Wholesale D672 - - 0637 9637
Real cstale 4,544 - - 4140 4,140
Working capital 3,308 - - 2,811 2,811

Financial linbilitics
Uinsecired notes and loans payvable $ BIMm 3 - & 2420 % 60 5 R2089
Secured notes and loans payable 14,568 - - R 14,608

In conjunction with the adoption of ASL 20016-13, we have changed the presentation of accreed interesi relnted 1o
{incaince receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheet from Finance recenvables, net 1o Oiher asscts; howewer, TMCC
measurces the fir value of cach class of firmance reccivables using scheduled principal and interest payments,
Therelore, acerued ioterest has been included in the camryimie value of each cluss of fnance recemvables m ihe ables
above, along with finance receivables, deferred ongination cosis, deferred income, and allowance lor credin losses
Finance recemvables i the able above exclodes related party transactions, for which the fair value approximates the
cammying valug, of S140 million and 5109 million o March 31, 202 | nd 2020, respectively. Fair values of relited
party lnance receivables. net are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

For Casly wisd cash equivalenis and Resiricied cash and cush equivalems on our Cosolidimed Balmce Sheets, the Gur
value approxinates the carrying value and these instruments are classified as Level | within the fair value hicrarchy,
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Ml 14 — n

Chur reportable sepments are Finanee operations and Volunlary protestion operatons. Fmance operations include
retil, keasing, and dealer finuncing provided to authonized dealers and their customers in the LS, and Paerio Rico
Voluntary prolection openions are performed by TMIS and ils subsidianies.

Financial mformaiion for our reportable operating scgmenis, which ncludes allocsied corporate expenses, is
surmnuriaed as foflows:
Year ended March 31_ 2021

Voluntary
Fmance peolection  Inlercompany
_operations operations eliminatsns Tokal
Tolal fmancing revenses § 1,790 § - 5 - 5 11,709
Depreciation on operaling leases 5433 . . 5952
Interest expense 2302 . . 2,302
et fimoncing revenses 1565 - - 1565
Woluntary profection confracl revenuies
and insurance camed premiums B 934 - 56
Investment angd oiber income, et 93 317 - 410
et fmancing omd ather revenues 1058 1273 - 4931
Expemses:
Provision for credit losses A6 - - 424
Opcrating and admdmstrative expenses 1,124 263 - 1,487
Volunlary proteciion contmel expenses amd msuranoe losses - k] - kL]
Toial EXPLsS 1,540 Ti2 - j,gg:_e
Income belare imcome laxes 208 541 - 2y
Prowision for income axes jo2 130 - 63
et meonse ] |06 § 411 % - 5 2,017
Totl pssets 1776 § w149 5 (1471 § 133728
132
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14~ i
Yiear canbed Masch 31, 2020
Viluntary
Fuamee profection Inderconipany
_operalions  operations  eliminations Total
Tolal fmancing revenses 5 12025 & - 5 - 5 12,029
lepreciation on operaling leases £, 820 - - 620
Interest expense 1854 - 12 p:AE
Poet financing revenscs 2358 - k. 1} 2375
WValuntary profcction contracl revemics
ardd insurance eamed premivms - 933 - 933
Investmient and oiber income, net 155 187 [Rild] 3212
et fenancing and other revenises 2500 1,120 - 1630
Fapenses.
Prowisaom for crodil losses 390 - . S0
Uperating and administrbive expenses 1197 i - 1,501
Volunlary protechion conbmet expenses and msurance losses - 455 - 453
Total expenses 1,787 19 - 2.6
Incomie belore mconme laxes T3 i - 1024
Provision [oF meoimie laxes .'I:'.? T_." - 1 |_|
Pt o 5 684  § 129 3 - § 913
Tolal pssits § 120080 § 550 3 (L145) 5 135558
Year ended Masch 31, 2009
Viluntary
Fimsnce protection  Indercompany
opetations _operations - climinations Tatal
Tolal fmancing revenses 5 1640 & - 5 - 5 11,640
[epreciation on operaling leases 6,909 - - 6,505
Inferest enpense 2,768 - 22) 2747
et lenancing revenses 1,962 . n 1,984
Woaluntary profection contracl fevenics
anid insurance comed premiums - i - M
Investiment and oibser meome, net 188 126 22 2
et financing and other revenses 2,150 1030 - 3080
Expenses:
Provasdon for credit losses n . - m
Urperatimy and ailmimisimbive expenses 1,035 a7 - 1,383
Volumlary protechion contmct expenses and msurance losses . 446 - 446
Tilal expenses 1410 T - 2,203
Income belore meome laxes Tan 37 - an
Proatsion for meome lakes 147 s - 182
ek mcome 5 51 5 i 5 - 3 TH5
Total assets L T 5060 % (L16%) % 116,516
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{Dallars m mullions)

Miite 14 — nfin wli

Valwmtory profeciion speraiions
The voluntary profection opertions sepment offers vehicle and payment prodection produices on Toyois, Lexus and
other domestic and impon vehicles thit are primarnily sobd by dealers abong with the sale of a velicle

Vinlurntaery prasteciion comirent reveies

We recgive the contrictually determined dealer cost al the ingeption of the contract. Revenueg 13 then deferred and
recoindzed over the term of the contract according 1o camings ctors cstablished by managemem that are based upon
historical boss experience. Contracts sold range in jerm from 3 to | 20 months and are typically cancellable at any
time. Thee effect of subsequent cancellations is recorded as an offsel 10 uneamed voluntary profection coniraci
revenes in Oiher labilities on our Consolidnted Balonoc Shects.

For ihe years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, approximately 83 percent and 54 percent of volunuary
prelection conlrcl revenues in the Volunkry proection operations sepmenl were accounted for under ASU 2014-09.

The Voluniary protection operations segment defers contractually determined incentives paid to dealers as contract
cosls for selling voluniary protection producis. These cosis are recorded in Other assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets and are ansortized 1o Operating and admimstealve expenses on the Consolidaed Satemems of [ncome using 3
methododogy consistent with the recognition of revenoe.  The mmount of capitalized dealer incemives and the related
almrﬁ:mirnu was nol significant 1o our consolidaied financial siatements as of and for the years ended March 31, 2021
nd 20208,

Wi had 52 4 billion and 52.5 billion of uncamed voluniary protection contract revenues from contracts with customers
included in Cither liabilities on our Consolidmed Balonee Sheets as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021,
respectively. We recopmized 5606 million of the unearned amoums i voluiary protechion contrct revenses in our
Consolidated Staemens of Income during fiscal 2021, We expect 10 recognisg as revenuge approximasely S710
million in fscal 2022 and 51_% billion therealer.

Insurance eurned pressiunes

Revenues from providing covernee under various insurance contrugls are recognized over the term of the coverage in
relation io the uiming and level of anticipated claims. Revenues from insurance policies, net of premiums ceded 1o
reinsurers, are eamed aver the tlerms of e respective palicies in proporteoen o he estimated boss devebapment
Muagement relics on listorical loss experience as i busis for establishing earnings factors used 10 recognize revenue
over the torm of the coniraci or policy.

Volumtory profeciion controet expenses and fniraes losses

Veluntary prolection contract expenses and insurance losses imchide amounts paid and acerued for loss events thit ane
known and have been recorded as claims, estimates of losses incurred but not reported based on achwrial estimales
ad historical boss development paticrns, and 1oss adjusiment expenses that are cxpecied 1o be incurred in connection
with settling and paving these claims.

Accnzls for unpaid losses, bosses incurred but nod reporied, and loss adjustment expenscs arc inchided in Other
liabilities m our Conselidned Balance Sheets. These accruals arising from coniracts entered Bvo by TMIS are not
significant as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, Estimatcd liabilitics are reviewed regularly, and we recognize any
adjustmends in the periods in which they are detennined. IFanticipated losses, boss adjustment expenses, and
iinamnanized aoquisiten and mainenance coss exceed the recorded uneared premiim, o premium deficiency is
recogmized by firs charging any unamontized acquisition costs 1o expense and then by recording a liability for any
excess deficiency,

Rivk Trausfer

Our voluntary predection operitions transfer ceriain risks 10 protect us against the mmpact of unpredictable high
severity losses. The amounts recoverable Mron reinsurers and other companics thi assume habilities reliing 1o our
Voluntary protection opendions are determised in o manner consistent withi the related reinsurance or risk transfer
comracl. Amounts recoverable from reinsirers and other companics on unpaid losses are recorded as a receivable but
are not collectible until the losses are paid. Revenues related 1o risks transfermed are recogniced on the sminke basis as
the related revenues from ihe underlying comiracis. Covered losses are recorded as a reduciion 1o Voluntary proiection
conlract expenses and insurance losses.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

Mg 15— rl 1]
nisdited
Frrst Secomd Thard Fourth
Yoear cnded March 31, 2021:
Fimancing revenues;
Chperating lease 5 129 .5 2114 5 2122 § 21106
Retail 0T 723 T40 Thl
[Realer i 95 103 101
Totnd finoncing revemics 29012 2,935 2974 24978
Peprecaation on operating leases. 1,685 1,349 1450 1,445
Interes! expense 548 495 A91 ThE
et financing revenues 679 1Lo=i 1.3 Thl
Vlunilary protecisen contract revenes
aml insiEance carmed premioms 235 238 241 242
Investiment and ofher income, net o - R _% 17 (35)
et finemcing revenues amed other revenues 140 1.41% 1.453 L]
Expenses:
Provision for credil losses 183 65 18 &l
Ohperating ond sdmimistrative 345 389 354 3949
Wolustary protection contrmcl CXpenses
awtiel msurmice heses 75 92 R 104
Tastad expenas L5 546 5T 563
oo before ineome s 487 TR =1 A
Provision for mconse s ’ ny 218 A5 _Bo
el mcone 5 i S 655 § Gl § 520
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars i millions)

M 5= rl 8] [
Ungudited
First Second Third Fourth
_ HUSNTIEY _ Hiewriet _uatier L
Yoear ended Murch 31, 2020:
Flmaibcing revenmics:
Operating lease 5 184 8§ .19 § 221 1,182
Hctail 89 635 o6l 670
Decaler 190 183 171 152
Taotal financing revemies 2.3 3008 Tk T
[eprecintion on operating leases 1625 1.583 1,712 14900
Interest cxpense 65"_7 G611 ?§§ ]
et finmcing revenues ol #22 577 333
Volumlary profection contract revenuss
and insuranee earmed premiums il 232 i | 1
Iavestmeent and other income, net 118 97 57 0
et financing revenues and other mevenues IHE 1.151 f. 10 26
Expenses;
Provision for credat losses 75 il 128 36
Urperating nnd administrative EET 358 Ay Al
l||"|.|lu:|1l|1r(|,r protection contmct expenses
amel msuranee hsses . | - . AL 16 1
Tivtal expenses 5258 534 [l!] 97
Imcome {loss) before income taxes 463 617 215 271
Provision {benefit) for income taxes 16k4 158 3 (185)
Pl memie (loss) 5 159 § 459 £ 151 § (%6

136
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2019 30
31 19
2021
2020
2020 31
)
ASU 2016-13
2020
ASC 810 VIE
VIE @
@
ASC 810 VIE
(DVIE (2VIE
VIE
VIE

ASC 810 VIE
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2020 15
2020 24
2019 14
2020
2020 12 25
2020 12 25
2019 14
2021 20

2021 15
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0000000
)
116 117
2019 2020 2021
— 29,866,547 27,214,594
— 2,792,942 2,932,354
— 2,036,140 2,245,261
— 1,555,009 3,217,806
19,907,100 20,618,888 23,404,547
53,416,405 53,972,363 62,267,140
() 7,028.25 7,454.00 8,370.88
() — 727.47 803.23
() — 720.10 794.67
() 37.3 38.2 37.6
() — 10.0 10.2
) — 8.9 10.7
— 2,398,496 2,727,162
— 2,124,650 4,684,175
— 362,805 2,739,174
3,602,805 4,098,450 5,100,857
371,193 361,907 366,283
) [86,708] [86,596] [80,009]

(

)
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113 114 115 116
2017 2018 2019 2020
( )| 27,597,193 29,379,510 30,225,681 29,929,992
( ) 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465 2,554,607
( ) 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873 2,076,183
( ) 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602 1,866,642
( )| 18,668,953 19,922,076 20,565,210 21,241,851
( )| 48,750,186 50,308,249 51,936,949 52,680,436
() 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92 7,252.17
() 605.47 842.00 650.55 735.61
() 599.22 832.78 645.11 729.50
() 35.9 37.2 37.3 38.1
() 10.6 13.7 9.8 10.4
() 10.0 8.1 10.0 8.8
( ) 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597 3,590,643
( ) 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,697,241 3,150,861
( ) 375,165 449,135 540,839 397,138
( ) 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515 4,412,190
364,445 369,124 370,870 359,542
[ 1 ) [ 86,005] [ 84,731] [ 87,129]| [ 86,219]|
) 116
2019
2017 2018
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)
113 114 115 116 117
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
( 11,476,344 | 12,201,444 | 12,634,439 | 12,729,731 | 11,761,405
( 1,801,737 | 2,238,140 | 2,323,122 | 1,735,365 | 1,886,601
( 1,520,011 | 1,859,313 | 1,806,825 | 1,424,062 | 1,638,057
( 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402
3,262,997 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,997 | 3,262,097 | 3,262,997
47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
( 11,365,784 | 12,040,948 | 12,450,275 | 12,590,801 | 13,894,021
( 16,502,168 | 17,209,436 | 17,716,994 | 17,809,246 | 21,198,281
() 3,659.40 3,072.72 4,225.55 4,377.19 4,797.77
210 220 220 220 240
( , ) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 105)
105 158 211 264 264
( N ) ( 52.5) ( 79.0) ( 105.5) (132.0) (132.0)
() 506.96 628.31 657.10 504.25 582.80
() 500.65 620.85 649.89 500.27 576.53
() 68.5 70.0 70.3 70.7 65.5
() 13.8 15.9 15.5 11.4 12.4
() 11.9 10.9 9.9 12.9 14.8
() 41.4 35.0 33.5 43.6 41.2
O 73,875 74,890 74,515 74,132 71,373
] [ 10.700] [ 10.905] [11,122]] [ 10,795]| [ 9,565]|
O 105.0 121.9 119.9 123.8 163.4
( () (114.7) (132.9) (126.2) (114.2) (162.3)
TOPIX)
() 7,156 7,782 7,592 7,929 8,650
() 4,975 5,695 6,079 5,941 6,195
)
( 28 2018 6 ) 115
114
)
( )
117 116
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@
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
( 1,812,554 1,978,884 2,141,906 2,200,557 2,174,001
( 215,447 280,769 313,306 281,329 474,498
( 148,687 509,930 222,308 223,836 350,229
( 117,191 439,270 267,214 103,547 497,070
( 2,291,850 2,733,310 2,893,403 3,005,729 3,484,968
( 22,188,626 | 22,636,927 | 23,660,621 | 24,574,145 | 27,482,433
( ) | 1,444,732.41| 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85 | 1,884,482.41 | 2,184,614.29
() 94,674.94 |  324,692.91 | 141,552.90 | 142,525.61 |  223,004.92
() = = - - =
() 10.2 11.9 12.1 12.0 12.5
() 6.7 20.5 8.0 7.7 11.0
() — — — — —
( — J— J— J— —
( P J— J— J— P
( _ J— - J— _
( - J— J— J— -
) 10,172 10,364 10,634 11,469 12,226
(1,548) (1,450) (1,540) (1,542) (1,386)
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 2019
2018
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@)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
39,854 58,411 75,532 67,138 67,148
28,947 47,297 63,027 52,635 47,481
26,160 42,983 57,665 43,866 41,009
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
581,408 624,560 580,459 621,868 665,834
589,136 633,111 586,472 629,775 674,448
370,206.23 | 397,682.51 | 369,601.93 | 395,968.40 [  423,963.15
. . 63,674.00 . .
(63,674.00)
16,657.31 27,369.48 36,717.92 27,931.86 26,112.55
98.7 98.6 99.0 98.7 98.7
4.6 7.1 9.6 7.3 6.4
— — 173.4 — _
79 73 85 99 230
(( S (18) (16) 14) an (23)
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
Cologne, Germany ( ) 100
’ 30,000
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 137,350
( ) 100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
St Leonards, ( )
New Soth Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
( 87.38
Bangkok, Thailand ) (0'04)
18,100 )
4,100,000 100
55
)
( )
(G
( )

10
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(€))
2021 31
)
2,205
3,695
1,252
4,844
C ) 230
12,226 (1,386)
)
( )
)
«C )
@)
2021 31
) ) ) C )
230(23) 40.8 2.9 8,378
) )
( ) )
(©)
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Ooooood
1,740 265
4,454 1,975 4,744
1,931 3,502 1,263
671
464 46 474 51 410 28

« )

2,212 259

100 44
« )
4,701 452
3,346 1,949

« )

792 36

160 101

( )

4,033 36

912 34
27 4,824 9,082
4,871 21 8,737 4,211 6,087
23 9,974 4,290
6,212 11 6,630 8,078 12 3,343
4,849 4,792
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( ) )
1,847,202 4.6
14,523,785 8.1
1,425,417 13.2
6,320,948 20.3
24,117,354 11.1

( ) )
221,237 13.3
1,470,158 3.0
79,232 4.4
403,371 0.9
2,174,001 1.2
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ooooooo
( )
2,135,341
2021 31
( ) )
4,590,637 100.0
4,590,637 100.0
2021 31
( )
)
1,973
769 | 12,031 506 | 13,308 (385)
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3
2021 31
( )

( )
(Plano 14,504 | 18,201 | 1,611 | 34,407 ?ﬁiéi
Texas, U.S.A.)

()
)
@
( 2021 2022 31 )
2,286,721
27,320
@
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(€))
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 _ _
(@)
A)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 () 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000
100,000
50,000
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)
(2021 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
(6)
(2021 31 )
) (
) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2021 31 )
() ()
( _ — _
( — J— J—
( — — —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —
1,570,500 — —
- 1,570,500 —
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1984
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2018
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2017
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2020
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) ( ) ( ) )
72 — 75 —

109 30 113 23
182 30 188 23

) ( ) ( ) )
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OooooOodd
@
( )
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
743,542 987,541
, 15,870,090 , 17,658,090
1,552,013 1,868,626
744,871 907,274
700,827 749,755
224,773 297,587
19,386,571 21,873,701
C ) , 4,294,527 , 4,590,637
28,759 33,906
4,323,286 4,624,543
50,839 54,671
415,387 612,942
398,059 316,575
813,447 929,517
5,187,573 5,608,732
24,574,145 27,482,433
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( )
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
1,236,789 870,500
) 2,047,580 ) 2,626,264
2,377,561 3,407,752
4,102,796 3,159,986
35,880 52,114
1,241,254 1,546,477
11,041,863 11,663,095
6,474,307 7,287,309
, 3,243,564 , 4,424,495
676,286 421,390
15,845 15,835
16,653 19,977
99,894 165,361
10,526,551 12,334,370
21,568,415 23,997,465
78,525 78,525
159,900 159,900
2,877,595 3,204,079
3,116,020 3,442,505
65 2,141
1,221 60
157,597 13,649
156,440 11,568
46,150 54,031
3,005,729 3,484,968
24,574,145 27,482,433
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( )
(2019 (2020

2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
2,200,557 2,174,001
1,428,139 1,225,949
772,417 948,052
524,541 502,615
247,876 445,436
305 673
6,308 3,958
25,070 23,290
2,926 2,130
34,610 30,053
486 634
671 357
1,157 991
281,329 474,498
3,919 —
3,919 —
708 —
708 —
284,539 474,498
57,604 402,704
5,159 278,586
62,764 124,118
221,775 350,379
2,061 150
223,836 350,229
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OooooOodd
( )
(2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )

221,775 350,379

1,249 2,206

1,618 900

113,202 144,460

2,156 924

118,227 146,690

103,547 497,070

106,975 495,101

3,427 1,968
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2019 2020 a1 )
( )
78,525 159,900 2,653,758 2,892,183
223,836 223,836
— — 223,836 223,836
78,525 159,900 2,877,595 3,116,020
1,184 3,217 43,981 39,579 40,799 2,893,403
223,836
1,250 1,995 113,615 116,860 5,350 111,510
1,250 1,995 113,615 116,860 5,350 112,326
65 1,221 157,597 156,440 46,150 3,005,729
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oOoOooodn
2020 2021 31
( )
78,525 159,900 2,877,595 3,116,020
23,744 23,744
78,525 159,900 2,853,850 3,092,275
350,229 350,229
— — 350,229 350,229
78,525 159,900 3,204,079 3,442,505
65 1,221 157,597 156,440 46,150 3,005,729
23,744
65 1,221 157,597 156,440 46,150 2,981,985
350,229
2,206 1,282 143,948 144,872 7,881 152,753
2,206 1,282 143,948 144,872 7,881 502,982
2,141 60 13,649 11,568 54,031 3,484,968
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)
( )
291,563 220,170
( )
57,308 88,799
)
ASC 326 )
ASC 326
23,744
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(2020 31 )
2022
(2020 31 )
(2021 26 )
1,696
31 2020 31 )
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(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
1,240,224 1,235,132
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
70,646 72,612
18,503 19,856
899 1,467
899 1,467
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
3,781,478 4,131,896
40,856 44,632
12,201 12,564
3,834,535 4,189,093
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
3,966,358 4,297,338
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
2,004,027 3,291,112
621,632 735,382
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
11,955 19,362
1,048,844 1,369,733
925,164 1,860,607
20,361 7,279
14,264 27,716
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(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
1,957,684 3,182,239

(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
1,795,904 3,029,582
621,632 735,382
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(2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
92,216 100,150
157,321 108,348
(2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
( )19,521 ( )5,218
(2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
1,939 5,401
92 2,106
2,031 3,295
782 1,088
1,249 2,206
1,163 398
1,153 817
2,317 1,216
698 315
1,618 900
113,202 144,460
2,156 924
118,227 146,690

288/326



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

)
(2019 2020 31
() 1,570,500 — — 1,570,500
(2020 2021 31
() 1,570,500 — — 1,570,500
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( )
( )
@
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
649,404 714,466
469,047 519,702
101,031 109,296
1,017,421 1,124,873
@
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
198,314 243,077
161,331 225,722
123,399 176,064
67,187 103,587
24,611 49,095
1,756 3,494
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
250,591 283,418
175,503 190,362
125,356 134,699
67,624 73,218
24,857 24,597
5,470 8,169
( )
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
726,749 784,641
735,365 830,386
1,462,114 1,615,028
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100BPV 100 &))
( )}
2020 31 2021 31
(100BPV) (  )103,451 (  )93,766
)
ALM
©))
( )
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« )
(2020 31 )
)
(6H) 743,542 743,542 —
@ 15,870,090
) 189,569
15,680,520 15,778,103 97,582
) ( 1,082,965
) 30,600
1,052,365 1,135,276 82,911
(O] 1,098,262 1,108,003 9,741
18,574,690 18,764,925 190,235
[€H) 1,236,789 1,236,789 —
[©) 4,102,796 4,102,796 —
®) 8,851,868 8,885,639 33,770
O] ) 5,291,144 5,303,940 12,795
19,482,599 19,529,165 46,566
)
161,679 21,584 183,263
1,011 2,815 1,803
162,690 18,769 181,459
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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(2021 31 )
)
@ 987,541 987,541 —
@ 17,658,090
) 258,456
17,399,634 18,010,408 610,774
&) ( 1,348,923
) 33,106
1,315,817 1,390,842 75,025
(O] 1,455,698 1,476,736 21,037
21,158,691 21,865,529 706,837
€)) 870,500 870,500 —
() 3,159,986 3,159,986 —
®) 10,695,062 10,913,002 217,940
) ) 7,050,759 7,071,284 20,525
21,776,308 22,014,773 238,465
)
82,685 91,727 9,042
674 1,917 1,243
82,011 89,809 7,798
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
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2020 31 2021 31
61,997 64,517
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(2020 31 )
(¢ )
743,542 — —
6,422,927 8,503,251 733,836
391,688 672,644 6,283
6,628 13,649 18,048
5,507 6,075 27,756
427,185 — 387
439,321 19,725 46,191
7,997,479 9,195,621 786,311

(2021 31 )

( )
987,541 — —
6,417,314 9,934,252 1,058,572
457,949 867,014 10,258
10,170 20,310 15,160
2,712 6,082 25,174
502,659 — 399
515,541 26,393 40,735
8,378,347 10,827,660 1,109,566
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(2020 31 )
(¢ )
1,236,789 — _
4,102,796 — —
2,378,722 5,745,410 750,990
2,047,580 3,060,465 183,098
9,765,888 8,805,876 934,089

(2021 31 )

( )
870,500 — —
3,159,986 — —
3,409,365 6,315,756 993,547
2,626,264 4,251,601 172,893
10,066,116 10,567,357 1,166,440
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(2020 31 )
( )
25,831 23,786 2,044
20,171 19,126 1,045
207,000 200,319 6,680
253,003 243,232 9,771
5,001 7,743 2,741
14,672 14,672 —
18,792 19,384 591
789,288 791,206 1,918
827,754 833,006 5,251
1,080,758 1,076,239 4,519
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(2021 31 )

( )
9,135 7,617 1,517
19,347 18,869 477
32,090 30,599 1,491
366,951 348,643 18,307
427,524 405,730 21,794
205 205 —
26,442 27,136 694
3,104 3,120 16
979,868 980,694 826
1,009,620 1,011,157 1,536
1,437,145 1,416,887 20,257
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OooooOodd
(
(2020 31 )
@
)
4,196 — 83 83
422,594 — 14,491 14,491
881,811 653,728 69,050 69,050
441,987 350,086 67,285 67,285
394,207 362,347 6,386 6,386
265,757 122,917 19,884 19,884
248,095 143,492 44,249 44,249
1,993,879 1,381,336 100,668 100,668
4,652,529 3,013,908 36,653 36,653
)
@
)
4,645,802 4,034,155 177,949 177,949
9,984,114 6,426,895 236,891 236,891
401,348 275,699 704 704
15,031,265 10,736,749 58,237 58,237
)
@
)
44,000 44,000 1,011
155,500 143,500 1,803
199,500 187,500 2,815
)
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OooooOodd
(2021 31 )
@
)
17,957 — 18 18
494,600 — 3,116 3,116
665,021 441,546 14,406 14,406
481,019 394,598 41,720 41,720
423,765 271,969 18,232 18,232
415,305 271,856 13,208 13,208
307,302 223,623 5,991 5,991
2,031,426 1,342,121 7,164 7,164
4,836,398 2,945,717 77,441 77,441
)
@
)
4,988,360 3,938,590 89,257 89,257
10,431,936 6,608,192 106,962 106,962
569,088 349,249 3,418 3,418
15,989,385 10,896,032 14,286 14,286
)
@
)
44,000 44,000 674
143,500 143,500 1,243
187,500 187,500 1,917
)

301/326




EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
(
2,782
2,286
€))
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
470,647 552,215
487,375 522,921
16,728 29,294
@
27.7 (2019 2020 31 )
29.0 (2020 2021 31 )
(©)
o
(€))
(2019 (202
2020 31 2021 31 )
33,856 32,359
1,529 1,564
529 490
1,018 992
1,018 3,064
1,518 4,306
32,359 40,791
@
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OooooOodd
(©)
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )

21,771 29,347

15,981 20,814

5,789 8,532

10,587 11,444

16,377 19,977

16,653 19,977

275 —

16,377 19,977
O]

( 2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )

1,529 1,564

162 2,289

254 166

1,946 4,021
®
®

(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
0.1 3.9 0.1 3.3
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(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
47,032 74,886
9,619 11,663
54,554 65,227
111,206 151,777
8,453 10,882
102,752 140,895
661,852 427,296
57,095 55,194
718,947 482,491
616,195 341,596
) )
( ) ( )
- 60,091 ‘" 79,794
— 676,286 — 421,390
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
30.6 30.6
6.4 7.6
2.1 3.2
22.1 26.2
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OooooOodd
( )
( )
(2019 2020 31 )
( )
) )
195,315 | 1,515,398 | 82,845 [ 1,793,559 | 406,998 | 2,200,557 — | 2,200,557
250 9,330 — 9,581 | 20,203 29,784 | 29,784 —
195,566 | 1,524,729 | 82,845 | 1,803,140 | 427,201 | 2,230,342 | 29,784 | 2,200,557
14,434 | 139,656 5,956 | 160,047 | 94,775 | 254,823 | 6,946 | 247,876
1,765,955 (13,437,932 | 1,258,876 [16,462,763 | 5,253,867 |21,716,631 — 21,716,631
1,642 | 306,917 | 28,521 | 337,080 | 148,021 | 485,102 | 18,409 | 466,693
5,796 | 683,618 1,239 | 690,654 | 64,166 | 754,821 20| 754,841
11,000 78,842 | 21,470 | 111,313 | 46,008 | 157,321 —| 157,321
)
@ 6,946
0} 18,409
9,443 443,881 90,394
369,807
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(2020 2021 31 )
( )
) )
221,237 | 1,470,158 | 79,232 | 1,770,629 | 403,371 | 2,174,001 — | 2,174,001
1,471 8,270 0 9,741 | 15,424 25,166 | 25,166 —

222,709 | 1,478,429 79,232 | 1,780,371 418,796 | 2,199,167 25,166 | 2,174,001

10,015 334,606 16,071 360,693 91,283 451,976 6,540 445,436

1,847,202 (14,523,785 (1,425,417 (17,796,406 | 6,320,948 |24,117,354 — 24,117,354

3,079 265,260 24,840 293,180 127,039 420,219 13,988 406,231

8,236 647,113 1,023 656,373 74,016 730,390 40 730,430
13,824 48,619 27,264 89,707 18,641 108,348 — 108,348
€Y 6,540
) 13,988
10,730 445,258 86,734
358,023
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2019 2020 31 )
90
1€))
)
195,315 1,444,994 560,246 2,200,557
)
@
)
8,816 3,975,148 339,322 4,323,286
10
2020 2021 31 )
90
o
)
221,237 1,400,989 551,773 2,174,001
)
@
)
32,226 4,122,573 469,743 4,624,543
10
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( 2019 2020 31 )
( ) ( ) ( )
()
18,100 () 285,072 — —
Plano,
Texas 326,490 326,490
’ 365,000 ’ ’
U.S.A. ’
( 2020 2021 31 )
( ) ( ) ( )
()
18,100 () 298,612 — —
)
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2019 2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
1,884,482 41 2,184,614 29
142,525 61 223,004 92
)
2019 2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
223,836 350,229
( —_ J—
223,836 350,229
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
) 3,005,729 3,484,968
46,150 54,031
2,959,579 3,430,936
1,570,500 1,570,500
)
(
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( ) ( ) (@)
2005 547,000 567,000 | 0.00 2020
() (105,000)
2020 1.91 2028
2015 865,629 922,487 | 0.78 | ( ) 2020
) (285,488)
() 2021 [ 230 [ 242 39.68 2026
)
86,120 70,900
500 4,000
4,900 4,990
744 900
23,324 23,050
13,000 13,000
800 300
3,000
1
2007 7,439,238 9,205,574 | 0.07 2020
(3,017,263)
) 2021 [ 44,132 [ 54,928 29.48 2048
)
) 11,853 9,946
2,003 1,490
2,266 2,331
2,567 2,567
11,325 13,330
7,084 5,354
550 855
59 40
300 300
1,500
]
10,695,062
— — 8,851,868 (407752 — —
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3,409,365

2,822,283

1,638,917

1,102,273

752,281
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( ) ( ) (@)
1,236,789 870,500 1.62 —
2,047,580 2,626,264 1.64 —
1,048,754 1,369,699 1.32 —
) 3,243,564 4,424,495 1.38 | 2022 2038
908,930 1,812,539 1.21] 2022 2026
) 4,102,796 3,159,986 0.17 —
()
( )
1,822,031 1,111,558 578,724 739,286
760,704 285,703 261,098 497,454
100
@
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@
( )
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )
14,144 15,227
7,738 8,202
48,330 67,740
643 1,797
70,855 92,967
239 257
76 462
13,983 19,847
245,733 254,385
145,604 153,185
151,080 151,080
2,201 2,262
558,604 580,760
558,920 581,480
629,775 674,448

314/326



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd

( )
(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )

4,506 4,482
2,708 3,406
7,214 7,889
692 724
7,907 8,613
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
466,721 507,730
466,721 507,730
623,771 664,780
1,902 1,053
1,902 1,053
621,868 665,834
629,775 674,448
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Ogoooood
( )
(2019 2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31 )
51,591 51,275
15,546 15,872
67,138 67,148
8,851 9,033
8,851 9,033
58,286 58,115
7,184 11,674
51,102 46,441
159 141
220 249
1,128 —
53 532
2 126
1,565 1,050
31 10
31 10
52,635 47,481
3,949 4,234
708 —
4,657 4,234
47,978 43,246
4,828 3,574
716 1,337
4,111 2,236
43,866 41,009
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(2019 2020 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 422,854 579,904 555 580,459
43,866 43,866 43,866
) 2,458 2,458
— — 43,866 43,866 2,458 41,408
78,525 78,525 466,721 623,771 1,902 621,868
( 2020 2021 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 466,721 623,771 1,902 621,868
41,009 41,009 41,009
) 2,955 2,955
— — 41,009 41,009 2,955 43,965
78,525 78,525 507,730 664,780 1,053 665,834

317/326



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

o

@

€Y

@

®

39 2020 31
28 2018 16 44

318/326



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
( )
(2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31
159 141
(2019 (2020
2020 31 ) 2021 31
2,850 6,270
1,307 1,999
242 360
163 130
)
(2020 31
( ) ) (
1) — — —
[O) 1,580 27,244 25,663
1,580 27,244 25,663
(2021 31
( ) ) (
1) — — —
[©) 1,580 39,590 38,010
1,580 39,590 38,010
)
( )
2020 31 2021 31
211,477 220,128
32,675 32,675
244,153 252,804
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(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )

1,208 2,504

838 —

539 971

— 920

216 216

203 212

164 164

94 147

74 110

98 56

113 43

3,553 5,348

1,594 2,890

1,958 2,457

45 45

— 464

45 510

1,912 1,947

(2020 31 ) (2021 31 )

30.6 30.6
31.4 33.9
6.4 5.5
3.0 3.0
0.0 0.0
8.6 5.2
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) ( )

231,900 8,116

Uber Technologies, Inc. 1,025,174 6,186
7,280,000 2,948

SYNQA Pte. Ltd 263,066 1,603
5,571,782 992

14,371,922 19,847

( ) | ( ) | ( ) | C ) ( ) ( )

( )

— — — 381 123 34 257
— — — 511 49 5 462

@

®)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation:

Opinion on the Financial Satements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
shareholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2021, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financia statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2021 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Change in Accounting Principle

Asdiscussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
credit lossesin fiscal year 2021.

Basisfor Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statementsin accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not reguired to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financia reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dueto error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (i) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosuresto which it relates.
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Retail Loan Portfolio Allowance for Credit Losses

As described in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company had retail loans of $66,728 million, for
which an allowance for credit losses of $1,075 million was recorded as of March 31, 2021. The allowance for credit |osses
represents management’ s estimate of expected credit losses over the expected lifetime of the loans. The loan lifetime is
regarded by management as the reasonable and supportable period. Management uses statistical models to estimate lifetime
expected credit losses of the retail 1oan portfolio by applying probability of default and loss given default to the exposure at
default on aloan level basis. Probability of default models are developed from internal risk scoring models which consider
variables such as delinquency status, historical default frequency and other credit quality indicators such as loan-to-value ratio,
book payment-to-income ratio, FICO score at origination, collateral type, and contract term. Loss given default models forecast
the extent of losses given that a default has occurred and consider variables such as collateral, trends in recoveries, historical
loss severity and other contract structure variables. Exposure at default represents the expected outstanding principal balance,
including the effects of expected prepayment when applicable. The lifetime expected credit |osses incorporate the probability
weighted forward |ooking macroeconomic forecasts for baseline, favorable, and adverse scenarios. If management does not
believe the models reflect lifetime expected credit losses, a qualitative adjustment is made to reflect management judgment
regarding observable changes in recent or expected economic trends and conditions, portfolio composition, and other relevant
factors.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the retail loan portfolio allowance for
credit lossesis acritical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management in determining the estimate of the retail
loan portfolio alowance for credit losses, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in
performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence relating to probability of default and loss given default assumptions and
the qualitative adjustment used in estimating the allowance for credit losses, and (ii) the audit effort involved the use of
professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financia statements. These procedures also included, among others, testing management’s process
for estimating the retail loan portfolio allowance for credit losses by (i) evaluating the appropriateness of the models used to
estimate the retail 1oan portfolio allowance for credit losses, (i) testing certain data used in the estimate, and (iii) evaluating the
reasonableness of probability of default and loss given default assumptions and the qualitative adjustment, which also involved
the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to perform these procedures to test management’s process.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas

June 3, 2021

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1983.
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